
 
 

 
 

 
Gloucester Road    Tewkesbury   Glos   GL20 5TT   Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021  Fax: (01684) 272040 

Email: democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk    Website: www.tewkesbury.gov.uk 

7 May 2020 
 

Committee Planning 

Date Tuesday, 19 May 2020 

Time of Meeting 10:00 am 

This is a remote meeting in accordance with the Local Authorities 
and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local 
Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and 

Wales) Regulations 2020. 

Members of the public will be able to view this meeting whilst it is 
in session by clicking on the link that will be available on the 

Agenda publication page immediately prior to the commencement 
of the meeting. 

 

Agenda 

1.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
   
2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
   
 To receive apologies for absence and advise of any substitutions.   
   
3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
 Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 26 June 2012 of the 

Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 July 
2012, as set out in Minute No. CL.34, Members are invited to declare any 
interest they may have in the business set out on the Agenda to which the 
approved Code applies. 

 

   
4.   MINUTES 1 - 72 
   
 To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2020.  
  

 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk


 Item Page(s) 

 

 2 

5.   DEVELOPMENT CONTROL - APPLICATIONS TO THE BOROUGH 
COUNCIL 

 

   
(a) 19/01225/FUL - The Traffic Group Limited, White Lion House, 

Gloucester Road 
73 - 85 

  
 PROPOSAL: Two storey extension to existing production building 

(use class B1 (c)) and reconfiguration to, and extension of, existing 
car park. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit 

 

   
(b) 20/00175/FUL - Tretower, 28 Langley Road, Winchcombe 86 - 92 

  
 PROPOSAL: Erection of a first floor rear extension.  

 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit 

 

   
(c) 20/00233/PIP - Land at the Bungalow, Down Hatherley Lane, 

Down Hatherley 
93 - 100 

  
 PROPOSAL: Erection of one infill dwelling. 

 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Approve  

 

   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

TUESDAY, 16 JUNE 2020 

COUNCILLORS CONSTITUTING COMMITTEE 

Councillors: R A Bird, G F Blackwell, R D East (Vice-Chair), J H Evetts (Chair), L A Gerrard,                
M A Gore, D J Harwood, A Hollaway, M L Jordan, E J MacTiernan, J R Mason, P W Ockelton,              
A S Reece, P E Smith, R J G Smith, P D Surman, R J E Vines, M J Williams and P N Workman  

  

 
Substitution Arrangements  
 
The Council has a substitution procedure and any substitutions will be announced at the 
beginning of the meeting. 
 
Recording of Meetings  
 
In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be 
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded.  



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Planning Committee held at the Council Offices, 

Gloucester Road, Tewkesbury on Tuesday, 17 March 2020 commencing at 10:00 
am 

 
 

Present: 
 

Chair Councillor J H Evetts 
Vice Chair Councillor R D East 

 
and Councillors: 

 
R A Bird, G F Blackwell, M A Gore, D J Harwood, A Hollaway, M L Jordan, E J MacTiernan,                           

J R Mason, P W Ockelton, A S Reece, P E Smith, R J E Vines and P N Workman 
 

PL.56 ANNOUNCEMENTS  

56.1 The evacuation procedure, as noted on the Agenda, was advised to those present. 

56.2 The Chair gave a brief outline of the scheme and the procedure for Planning 
Committee meetings including public speaking. 

PL.57 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

57.1  Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R J G Smith, P D Surman 
and M J Williams.  There were no substitutions for the meeting.  

PL.58 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

58.1 The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of 
Conduct which was adopted by the Council on 26 June 2012 and took effect from 1 
July 2012. 

58.2 The following declarations were made: 

 Councillor Application 
No./Agenda Item 

Nature of Interest 
(where disclosed) 

Declared 
Action in 
respect of 
Disclosure 

R D East General 
declaration. 

Had received 
correspondence in 
relation to various 
applications but had 
not expressed an 
opinion. 

 

 

 
 

Would speak 
and vote. 

1

Agenda Item 4



J H Evetts Agenda Item 5b – 
20/00042/FUL – 
Dixton Manor, 
Dixton, 
Gotherington. 

Agenda Item 5c – 
20/00043/LBC – 
Dixton Manor, 
Dixton, 
Gotherington. 

Had attended a 
meeting with the 
applicant, who had 
explained the 
proposals, but had 
not expressed an 
opinion. 

Would speak 
and vote. 

J H Evetts Agenda Item 5d – 
19/00722/FUL – 
Land at Berry 
Wormington, 
Stanway Road, 
Stanton. 

Agenda Item 5e – 
19/00723/FUL – 
Land at Berry 
Wormington, 
Stanway Road, 
Stanton. 

Agenda Item 5f – 
19/00724/FUL – 
Land at Berry 
Wormington, 
Stanway Road, 
Stanton.  

The Officer reports in 
relation to these 
applications made 
considerable 
reference to the 
property where he 
lives. 

Would not 
speak or vote 
and would 
leave the room 
for 
consideration 
of these items. 

A Hollaway General 
declaration. 

Had received 
correspondence in 
relation to various 
applications but had 
not expressed an 
opinion. 

Would speak 
and vote. 

J R Mason Agenda Item 5b – 
20/00042/FUL – 
Dixton Manor, 
Dixton, 
Gotherington. 

Agenda Item 5c – 
20/00043/LBC – 
Dixton Manor, 
Dixton, 
Gotherington. 

Had attended a 
meeting with the 
applicant, who had 
explained the 
proposals, but had 
not expressed an 
opinion. 

Would speak 
and vote. 

P W Ockelton General 
declaration. 

Had received 
correspondence in 
relation to various 
applications but had 
not expressed an 
opinion. 

Would speak 
and vote. 

2



58.3  There were no further declarations made on this occasion. 

PL.59 MINUTES  

59.1  The Minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2020, copies of which had been 
circulated, were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.  

PL.60 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL - APPLICATIONS TO THE BOROUGH COUNCIL  

The objections to, support for and observations upon the various applications as 
referred to in Appendix 1 attached to these Minutes were presented to the 
Committee and duly taken into consideration by Members prior to decisions being 
made on those applications. 

 18/01251/FUL - Starveall Farm, Pamington Road, Pamington  

60.1  This was a hybrid planning application – a full planning application for the proposed 
erection of a new poultry site for up to 360,000 birds with solar panels, biomass 
boilers and associated buildings and development and an outline planning 
application for one agricultural worker’s dwelling with all matters reserved except for 
access.  The application had been deferred at the Planning Committee meeting on 
18 February 2020 in order to allow the appropriate consultation to take place to 
accord with the Environmental Impact Assessment regulations. 

60.2  The Planning Officer advised that the application related to land at Starveall Farm 
which was located approximately one mile south of Pamington.  There were four 
existing broiler rearing units on Starveall Farm which had planning permission for up 
to 200,000 birds.  The current application related to a parcel of land to the south of 
the existing units and comprised a full application for the erection of six broiler 
rearing units with capacity for 360,000 birds as well as biomass boiler buildings, 18 
feed bins and other ancillary structures; the application also included outline 
proposals for the erection of one agricultural worker’s dwelling.  The six poultry units 
would sit parallel to one other and each unit would measure 92 metres by 28 metres 
with a ridge height of 5.3 metres.  The supporting information with the application 
set out the need for a poultry enterprise and, although the proposal would not 
directly employ a large number of people, it would undoubtedly provide economic 
benefits to the area and the UK economy as a whole.  The National Planning Policy 
Framework was supportive of development which promoted a strong rural economy 
and encouraged policies which supported sustainable growth and expansion of all 
types of business and enterprise in rural areas, and which promoted the 
diversification of agricultural enterprises.  There would be harm arising from the 
development due to landscape impact but this was primarily restricted to nearby 
viewpoints from the public right of way to the south.  Although the site was visible 
from other viewpoints, including a public right of way on Oxenton Hill which was 
located within the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, the development would be 
viewed in the context of the existing poultry units to the north and the visual impact 
would be partially mitigated by landscaping and the colour of the proposed 
buildings.  There was potential for loss of amenity – both existing and future - as a 
result of on and off site operations primarily related to the emerging Garden Town.  
This was a matter which weighed against the proposal; however, it was considered 
that it could be mitigated to an acceptable impact through the Environmental 
Permitting Regime and the imposition of planning conditions.  In addition, the 
Garden Town proposals could only be afforded, at best, very limited weight in the 
determination of the application.  There would also be some impact on peace, 
tranquillity and amenity due to proximity but that could also be mitigated to an 
acceptable degree through the Environmental Permitting Regime.  It was 

3



considered there was a functional need for one additional agricultural worker’s 
dwelling, which related to a full-time worker in association with the poultry enterprise 
in the best interest of animal welfare and bio-security.  It was concluded that the 
proposed development was generally supported in principle by the National 
Planning Policy Framework and local plan policies and, whilst there would be some 
impacts on the area, Officers considered that the economic benefits of the proposal 
outweighed the harm in this case, as such, the Officer recommendation was to 
permit the application. 

60.3  The Chair invited the applicant to address the Committee.  The applicant indicated 
that he was pleased the application was being recommended for permission and 
hoped that Members would see it in the same light.  The Officer report was very 
thorough, matching the amount of work and the assessments that had been carried 
out in submitting the application.  He pointed out that there was no objection from 
the Environment Agency – which had approved an environmental permit to increase 
the farm size in August 2017 – and no objection or comments had been made by 
Environmental Health, Highways England, Highways Authority, Lead Local Flood 
Authority, Public Rights of Way Officer, County Archaeologist, Natural England, 
National Grid, Severn Trent Water or the Council’s Conservation Officer.   The site 
had direct access off the B4079 and was 430 metres from Claydon Farm, 570 
metres from Claydon farmhouse and 710 metres from Claydon cottages with 
Pamington and Oxenton both over 1,250 metres away.  The Council’s 
Environmental Health Officer had been consulted on the application and had no 
objection with regard to odour, furthermore, given the relative remoteness and the 
presence of the existing facility, any loss of amenity arising from the proposal would 
be negligible.  He explained that the site had no special environmental or ecological 
designations, was not identified as valued landscape in the development plan and 
was not within an area subject to any national or local landscape designation nor did 
it conflict with the National Planning Policy Framework.  There was no objection to 
the application on flood risk or drainage grounds and the proposal would accord 
with the Joint Core Strategy.  In terms of the proposed manager’s dwelling and 
Paragraph 79 of the National Planning Policy Framework, it was considered there 
was an essential need for a further dwelling at Starveall Farm.  In summary, a 
functional need for one additional dwelling had been established and, in terms of the 
poultry units, the proposed development was generally supported in principle by the 
National Planning Policy Framework and local plan policies.  He wished to 
emphasise that it was absolutely essential for the manager’s dwelling to be sited on 
the farm for biosecurity and welfare reasons and pointed out that Homes England 
had been consulted and raised no objection to the application. 

60.4  The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to permit the application 
and he sought a motion from the floor.  It was proposed and seconded that the 
application be permitted in accordance with the Officer recommendation and, upon 
being put to the vote, it was 

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the 
Officer recommendation. 

 20/00042/FUL - Dixton Manor, Dixton, Gotherington  

60.5  This application was for the proposed demolition of an existing stable block and 
replacement with a new stable block and associated outbuildings and felling of six 
trees following previous consents 17/00048/FUL and 17/00049/LBC; resubmission 
of applications 19/00500/FUL and 19/00501/LBC.  The Planning Committee had 
visited the application site on Monday 16 March 2020. 

 

 

4



60.6  The Planning Officer advised that this was one of two applications in respect of 
Dixton Manor and sought permission to demolish a curtilage listed building and 
replace it with a modern range.  The main matter to be addressed was the impact 
on the historic environment which, in this instance, comprised two key designated 
heritage assets – the curtilage stable block which was proposed to be demolished 
and the Manor itself.  The loss of the curtilage listed stable block would result in 
substantial harm to that asset, and less than substantial harm to the setting of the 
Manor, as such, its loss required clear and convincing justification.  The only 
perceived justification put forward related to the economic benefit to the applicant 
who suggested it would be more cost effective for them to demolish the stable 
rather than refurbish it; this had been assessed and was considered to be an 
inadequate justification for the harm.  The Council’s Conservation Officer and 
Historic England maintained strong objections to the scheme and it was therefore 
recommended for refusal. 

60.7  The Chair invited the applicant to address the Committee.  The applicant explained 
that he had purchased the Manor five years ago when it had been in a very poor 
state of repair having already had extensive and inappropriate alterations carried 
out.  He had been keen to restore the Manor to its former glory in keeping with its 
history and completion of the courtyard was the next piece of the jigsaw.  The 
application sought to remove the existing stable block, which had been altered to a 
point where very little heritage remained and was structurally unsound, as 
evidenced by the structural survey, so, despite his best intentions, could not be 
repaired and retained.  The application was also accompanied by a detailed 
heritage assessment which fully supported the proposal.  The applicant explained 
that he genuinely loved the house and had put a huge amount of work into its 
restoration.  He had explored other options but the proposal put forward was the 
correct solution under the circumstances and he hoped the Committee would take 
this into consideration in making its decision. 

60.8  The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to refuse the application 
and he sought a motion from the floor.  It was proposed and seconded that the 
application be permitted on the basis that the primary point of the listing was in 
respect of the Manor itself and the proposal was part of bringing it back to its former 
grandeur rather than detracting from it and was justified in that context.  The 
proposer of the motion felt that it had been clear from the Planning Committee Site 
Visit that the existing structure was unsound and there had been a lot of movement 
in the existing gable ends with changes made over the years not in keeping with its 
heritage.  Having read the Officer report and listened to the applicant, he fully 
supported the proposal and the attempt to reinstate the building.  The seconder of 
the motion agreed that the vibrant courtyard no longer existed and the applicant’s 
proposal would restore the status that it once had so that people driving along the 
road from Gretton to Gotherington would be able to look across and see a 
magnificent building that had been properly and caringly designed.  In his view, 
bringing the property back to its former glory was the most important consideration.  
The Council’s Conservation Officer disagreed with these sentiments, as had Historic 
England; the existing stable block was a historic building which was remnant of the 
original courtyard and still retained a significant amount of historic fabric such as the 
Cotswold stone roof, stone gables and brick walls.  His understanding was not that 
the structural engineer had stated that it was unstable, rather that it was potentially 
unstable if converted due to the soil against the rear wall which was not designed to 
take that weight.  He advised Members that they should consider the importance of 
the building in the wider context of the Grade II* listed building and remember that, 
once destroyed, the historical remnant would disappear forever so they should must 
assess the relative value of that against the proposal.  The applicant’s justification 
for demolition was to provide larger stable blocks and boxes for horses which was 
fair but could be accommodated in the new building that had already been permitted 
without demolition of the existing building.   

5



60.9 A Member queried whether it was possible to condition a permission to ensure the 
gable end was rebuilt as it was currently so that it would look exactly the same.  In 
response, the Council’s Conservation Officer explained that once demolished the 
context would be lost and using salvaged materials would not preserve the historical 
fabric.  The building had been constructed in a pre-mechanical age by local 
craftsmen and that could not be recreated; whilst it could be rebuilt, it would not be 
the same building.  The proposer of the motion accepted what the Conservation 
Officer was saying; however, the courtyard was a small part of a larger quadrangle 
which was almost all gone already and, in the longer term, he felt that replacing the 
building would be a positive rather than a negative.  In response to a Member query, 
the Planning Officer confirmed there was already planning permission in place 
which would retain the existing outbuilding whilst allowing the construction of the 
courtyard.  On that basis, the Member indicated that she could not support the 
proposal to permit the application and was of the view that the building should 
remain and be incorporated as part of the new courtyard in accordance with the 
extant planning permission.  This opinion was shared by another Member who felt 
that heritage was rapidly disappearing and should be preserved at every 
opportunity.  Another Member expressed the view that the purpose of listed 
buildings was to preserve something which had a future as opposed to something 
which would collapse if left alone, as in this instance.  He felt that a rebuild which 
was sympathetic to the context of the original building contributed positively to the 
landscape and was functional would be far preferable to allowing the building to 
continue to deteriorate and he was supportive of the proposal.  The Technical 
Planning Manager understood the debate but stressed that it was very important to 
understand the decision-making context and local planning authority’s statutory duty 
under the Listed Buildings Act and the considerable weight to be given to preserving 
and enhancing historic buildings.  There must be significant public benefits to 
outweigh any harm to the listed buildings and the Council’s expert and Historic 
England both objected to the application on that very basis.  The benefits of the 
application were very limited and the proposal was largely based on the applicant’s 
personal preferences; whilst he could understand the reasons for that, a judgement 
must be made as to whether the benefits of the proposal constituted the public 
benefit that was needed to outweigh the harm that would be caused to the listed 
asset.  

60.10 A Member reiterated her view that all listed buildings needed maintenance but that 
should be for the benefit of future generations and she strongly objected to the 
demolition of the building.  Another Member indicated that she had been on the 
Planning Committee Site Visit and did not consider it an attractive building, certainly 
not of the standard of Tewkesbury Abbey or other similar historic buildings.   

60.11 The Chair sought clarification as to the conditions that should be included if 
Members were minded to permit the application, particularly in terms of the gable 
end being rebuilt to appear as similar to the existing as possible.  A Member noted 
that the new building would be wider than the existing and, on that basis, 
questioned how the gable end could be constructed to look the same.  The Chair 
indicated that it would be impossible for it to be identical but could be constructed in 
a way to look the same so the historical context was not completely lost.  The 
Technical Planning Manager drew attention to the elevations on the plan at Page 
No. 76 of the Officer report which appeared to show that it would be very different in 
terms of proportions.  He recommended the inclusion of conditions in relation to; 
recording of the historic asset; materials; window and door design and materials; 
and boards and fascias.  A Member hoped that the top of the gable could be 
retained so that the only difference would be a slight change in angle; however, the 
Chair pointed out that the pitch of the roof was different with the original roof being 

 

 

6



  far more gothic in aspect than that proposed so he was unsure if this could be 
addressed.  Another Member indicated that the plan appeared to show a very large 
chimney and clarification was provided that the chimney was within another element 
of the proposal and not within the stable block. 

60.12  Upon being put to the vote, it was 

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED subject to conditions in 
relation to recording of the historic asset; materials; window and 
door design and materials; and boards and fascias. 

 20/00043/LBC - Dixton Manor, Dixton, Gotherington  

60.13  This was a listed building consent application for the proposed demolition of an 
existing stable block and replacement with a new stable block and associated 
outbuildings and felling of six trees following previous consents 17/00048/FUL and 
17/00049/LBC; resubmission of applications 19/00500/FUL and 19/00501/LBC.  
The Planning Committee had visited the application site on Monday 16 March 2020. 

60.14  The Chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item.  The Officer 
recommendation was to refuse consent and he invited a motion from the floor.  It 
was proposed and seconded that consent be granted in accordance with the 
decision on the previous application and, upon being put to the vote, it was 

RESOLVED That the application be GRANTED CONSENT in accordance 
with the decision in relation to the previous application ref: 
20/00042/FUL. 

 19/00722/FUL - Land at Berry Wormington, Stanway Road, Stanton  

60.15  This application was for a new livestock/general purpose store building and 
formation of a new access track and yard.   

60.16  The Planning Officer advised that the proposal would be served by a new access 
and track from the B4632 and, in combination with Agenda Items 5e and 5f, would 
form a new farmstead on a presently undeveloped field parcel.  Whilst agricultural 
enterprises were broadly supported by the National Planning Policy Framework and 
local plan policy, the proposal would have landscape and heritage implications 
given its location within the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and its proximity to 
a number of listed buildings. The agricultural need for the building had been 
demonstrated and the scale and design of the building was considered appropriate 
for the proposed use.  Although there would be some landscape harm by virtue of 
the development being within the open countryside, it was considered that the 
limited harm could be mitigated by conditions relating to landscaping, materials and 
external lighting.  The setting to Wormington Grange - a Grade II* listed building - 
would be preserved subject to compliance with the conditions set out in the Officer 
report.  The Additional Representations Sheet, attached at Appendix 1, set out 
further information with regards to landscaping, external lighting, pollution control 
and the apron to the development which had all helped to address concerns, and 
the Officer recommendation was to grant permission, subject to conditions set out in 
the Officer report as amended by the late material set out on the Additional 
Representations Sheet. 

60.17  The Vice-Chair in the chair invited the applicant to address the Committee.  The 
applicant indicated that he intended to speak to this application and the subsequent 
applications at Agenda Items 5e and 5f.  He explained that he had built up his 
livestock business - which included 1,200 breeding ewes, 2,400 lambs, 30 breeding 
rams and a number of cows and calves – over the last 25 years.  As any farmers 
would appreciate, machinery and buildings were essential for the continued 
successful running of a business that was reliant on good animal welfare; buildings 

7



allowed secure locations to undertake activities such as lambing and calving and for 
storage of hay/straw and equipment/machinery.  He had previously rented large 
barns to undertake such activities; however, in 2018, his lease had not been 
renewed leaving him without secure premises.  This had been a very anxious time 
with a real threat of losing the business.  The land at Berry Wormington had become 
available which had opened up the opportunity for him to continue farming.  
Although he rented land in various parts of the borough, this was the only land he 
owned and its purchase had represented a huge gamble; whilst the proposal was 
also a big investment, the opportunity to lessen the risk and increase the farm 
offering was invaluable.  From his experience with a previous application, he had 
come to appreciate the landscape sensitivities of the site and had worked hard with 
Officers and external organisations over the past years to create a high quality 
scheme with minimal impact on the surrounding area.  The applicant went on to 
explain that the site was within the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and the 
listed buildings Wormington Grange and Berry Wormington were both within the 
vicinity.  Through dialogue with the Council’s Landscape and Conservation Officers, 
several amendments had been made to the proposal, including differently coloured 
external materials and additional planting of trees and hedges, which had been well-
received.  The Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Conservation Board 
had noted the efforts to adjust the scheme in line with its advice and, although there 
was some concern about darker skies, this had been discussed with the Planning 
Officer and three conditions had been agreed which would ensure that any lighting 
used would not significantly impact on the darkness of the Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty.  The Environment Agency had not objected to the application and, 
further to its comments, the applicant had submitted a statement that set out how 
the scheme accorded with relevant Control of Pollution (Silage, Slurry and 
Agricultural Fuel Oil) Regulations 1991. The Committee was being asked to 
consider applications for three new barns which had been demonstrated to be 
necessary and policy compliant.  In summary, he explained that the development 
was for the purposes of the continued functioning of a successful family agricultural 
business and, working with Officers and external organisations, amendments had 
been made and conditions agreed in order to create a high quality scheme with 
minimal impact on the landscape.  He urged Members to support the Officer 
recommendations in relation to the three applications and permit his proposals. 

60.18  The Vice-Chair in the chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to permit 
the application and he sought a motion from the floor.  It was proposed and 
seconded that the application be permitted in accordance with the Officer 
recommendation.  A Member indicated that she was very happy to have the 
opportunity to support an application for a rural business within her Ward.  In 
response to a query in relation to the location of the site in Flood Zone 3, and the 
potential for leeching into existing watercourses, the Planning Officer drew attention 
to the Additional Representations Sheet which referenced the waste/manure 
management plan which explained the processes that would be carried out in the 
barns and that waste generation from the enterprise would be removed from the site 
and disposed of elsewhere.  Upon being taken to the vote, it was 

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the 
Officer recommendation. 

 

 

 

 

 

8



 19/00723/FUL - Land at Berry Wormington, Stanway Road, Stanton  

60.19  This application was for a new livestock housing/calf rearing building and formation 
of a new access track and yard.   

60.20  The Planning Officer explained that the Officer recommendation was permit rather 
than refuse as stated at Page No. 96 of the Officer report.  The application was for 
an agricultural building for the keeping of livestock/calf rearing and associated 
access drive and the size and design of the building was considered appropriate for 
the proposed use and, subject to compliance with conditions, would not adversely 
impact the landscape or heritage assets.  Notwithstanding this, there were concerns 
that the development may give rise to future demand for a caravan or dwelling at 
the site to provide supervision of livestock.  The applicant’s attention has been 
drawn to the observations from the Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
Board, the Council’s Landscape Adviser and Conservation Officer in that any further 
development at the site was likely to have adverse landscape and heritage impacts; 
however, the development as proposed was considered acceptable and the Officer 
recommendation was to grant planning permission, subject to conditions set out in 
the Officer report as amended by the late material set out in the Additional 
Representations Sheet, attached at Appendix 1. 

60.21  The Vice-Chair in the chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item 
as the applicant had made a statement under the previous Agenda Item which 
related to Agenda Items 5d, 5e and 5f.  The Officer recommendation was to permit 
the application and he sought a motion from the floor.  It was proposed and 
seconded that the application be permitted in accordance with the Officer 
recommendation and, upon being taken to the vote, it was 

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the 
Officer recommendation. 

 19/00724/FUL - Land at Berry Wormington, Stanway Road, Stanton  

60.22  This application was for a new agricultural workshop/storage building and formation 
of a new access track and yard. 

60.23  The Planning Officer advised that, since the publication of the Committee papers, 
the design of the building has been revised to omit 10 roof lights which would 
reduce light spill from the building and minimise the impact upon the dark skies of 
the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  He confirmed that the building was 
considered to be appropriate for the proposed use and would have an acceptable 
impact on landscape and heritage assets, subject to compliance with conditions.  As 
such, the Officer recommendation was to grant planning permission, subject to 
conditions set out in the Officer report as amended by the late material set out in the 
Additional Representations Sheet, attached at Appendix 1. 

60.24  The Vice-Chair in the chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item 
as the applicant had made a statement under the previous Agenda Item which 
related to Agenda Items 5d, 5e and 5f.  The Officer recommendation was to permit 
the application and he sought a motion from the floor.  It was proposed and 
seconded that the application be permitted in accordance with the Officer 
recommendation and, upon being taken to the vote, it was  

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the 
Officer recommendation. 

 

 

9



 19/00781/OUT - Land on the South Side of Dibden Lane, Alderton  

60.25  It was noted that this outline application for the erection of up to 41 new residential 
dwellings, including 20 affordable houses, associated access and landscaping had 
been withdrawn. 

 19/00772/FUL - Land Parcel 0088, Willow Bank Road, Alderton  

60.26  This application was for residential development up to 28 units, including means of 
access and landscaping. 

60.27  The Planning Officer advised that the site was located outside, but adjacent to, the 
settlement boundary of Alderton as shown in the Neighbourhood Development 
Plan and was within a Special Landscape Area with the Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty located to the north of Beckford Road.  The site was predominantly 
within Flood Zone 1, although the southern areas of the site close to the 
watercourse were within Flood Zones 2 and 3.  The application was made in full for 
the erection of 28 dwellings, 11 of which would be affordable, and the proposal 
was for a mixture of one, two, three and four bedroom properties including 
detached, semi-detached and terraced properties.  Access would be provided 
directly off Willow Bank Road.  As set out in the Officer report, the proposal was 
contrary to the development plan; however, as the Council could not currently 
demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing, the tilted balance was 
engaged and there was a presumption in favour of granting permission unless any 
adverse impacts would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits.  
Officers were of the view that, on balance, the adverse impacts would significantly 
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits in this case and the application was 
recommended for refusal for a number of reasons, primarily as the site was 
contrary to the development plan in respect of its location but also as the proposal 
would risk the erosion of social cohesion due to the cumulative increase in 
dwellings within Alderton in a relatively short period of time; it would have a harmful 
impact on the landscape within the Special Landscape Area; it would not provide 
an appropriate mix of dwelling sizes that reflected the local housing evidence base; 
it would fail to ensure that future residents could access sustainable means of 
transport; and the access was unsafe.  There were also a number of technical 
reasons for refusal due to lack of a signed Section 106 Agreement which was 
needed to secure the required affordable housing, education facilities, off-site play 
facilities, recycling facilities and library facilities.  In terms of ecology, as set out in 
the Additional Representations Sheet attached at Appendix 1, the proposal was 
now considered to be acceptable from an ecology perspective and therefore that 
recommended refusal reason had been removed. 

60.28  The Chair invited the representative from Alderton Parish Council to address the 
Committee.  The Parish Council representative explained that the Parish Council’s 
reasons for objecting to the proposed development were well summarised in the 
report from the Planning Officer and the problems with the scheme were 
numerous.  He pointed out that this matter was being taken seriously by the village 
with over 100 letters of objection received.  The Parish had a Neighbourhood 
Development Plan in place and this application was an important test of that Plan 
which did not provide for this development; furthermore, the site was outside of the 
settlement boundary and it was not included within the emerging Tewkesbury 
Borough Plan which had reached an advanced stage.  Alderton had already seen 
a 26% rise in new homes over the past few years which was a huge increase for a 
small rural village; there also continued to be small infill developments in addition 
to this so the Parish Council believed that Alderton had already done its bit for new 
housing stock.  The Parish was surrounded by fields owned by developers, or 
where developers had speculative interests, and this was part of a process where 

10



a historic village on the fringe of the Cotswolds would become nothing more than a 
series of housing estates surrounding a small older centre.  One of the main 
reasons for the first development from the applicant being allowed on appeal was 
because it was for 24 – to become 25 – houses and the obvious way to defeat 
opposition was to simply provide for staged increases, as such, this development 
should be looked upon as 53 houses in two stages; he pointed out that the Parish 
Council could not remember any comments from the developer about a second 
stage at the time of the first development.  The Parish Council representative went 
on to explain that the village had tried hard to engage the 200-250 new residents in 
community life but this had been very limited - at times non-existent - and having a 
further 75 people living on the fringe of the village down a long cul-de-sac, and 
driving out of the village every day, would do nothing for social cohesion.  He also 
pointed out that both the Landscape Adviser and Urban Design Officer objected to 
the proposal from a landscape perspective.  His final comment was that the Parish 
Council consultation response contained a number of quotes from appeal 
inspectors, including those who had approved developments in the village, about 
the potential harm from any further significant development in the village. 

60.29  The Chair invited a local resident speaking against the proposal to address the 
Committee.  The local resident explained that Alderton took pride in being a 
welcoming village with a vibrant community spirit; however, the strongly held view 
of residents was that yet another new build estate would have a detrimental impact 
on that village.  There were over 100 objections to the planning application on the 
Council’s website with one of the main concerns being that Alderton had already 
had its fair share of new houses.  She pointed out that it had taken hundreds of 
hours and a huge amount of effort from many residents to prepare the Alderton 
Neighbourhood Development Plan which had finally been adopted in 2018 and 
clearly laid out what the future of the village should be.  This development site was 
within the Special Landscape Area and would further close the historic gap 
between the village and the B4077.  Residents had moved to Alderton because of 
the beautiful surrounding fields and the views towards the Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty and the Cotswold hills; if further expansion outside the village 
boundary was allowed, those open views would be lost forever.  She raised 
concern that the applicant had already removed much of the hedgerow along the 
approach to the village from the main road as part of the previous development 
and any further loss of the remaining hedgerow from Arch Bridge would further 
urbanise the village.  As an owner of a bed and breakfast business, guests 
commented upon the negative impact on the landscape and the disappointment of 
coming to a rural village only to see exactly the same new build houses they had 
left at home; this was echoed by residents that lived in nearby villages and those 
who drove along the B4077.  She was pleased that County Highways supported 
her views on the safety and sustainability of the proposed development; given 
climate change, it made no sense to build houses in areas where cars were 
essential and she indicated that the bus service in the village was dismal and could 
not be used for commutes to and from work.  In addition, there were insufficient 
local facilities so residents were reliant on cars to access medical services, 
employment, leisure and retail – cycling or walking to places outside of the village 
was far too dangerous.  She explained that she overlooked the proposed site and 
she had witnessed flood water on, or very close to, some of the lower part of the 
site on at least three occasions this winter.  In addition, the recent increase in 
housing had not helped the falling pupil numbers at the school, or increased footfall 
in the village shop, so she could see no reason why the additional properties would 
benefit the village in any way and she asked that Members refuse the application. 

60.30  The Chair indicated that the applicant’s representative had been due to speak in 
favour of the proposal; however, due to the exceptional circumstances associated 
with the coronavirus and the government advice in relation to that, the 
representative was not able to attend in person and it had been agreed that, on 

11



this occasion, the statement would be read out by the Planning Officer.  The 
statement set out that the applicant was grateful for the hard work of Officers to 
progress the application, although clearly they did not agree with the conclusions.  
The applicant believed that the development could contribute much needed 
housing to Tewkesbury Borough’s housing land supply shortfall in a highly 
sustainable location, including 11 affordable homes and a mix of market houses, of 
which four were two bedroom bungalows.  The proposed development would 
contribute pupil places to the local primary school, which was undersubscribed, 
and over £100,000 directly to the Parish Council via the Community Infrastructure 
Levy.  Section 106 contributions would also provide around £200,000 of financial 
contributions toward pre-school and secondary education.  Figures from the Home 
Builders Federation stated that a development of this size would support around 87 
local jobs within the construction industry and supply chain.  The proposal would 
provide an improved outward facing edge to the village with high quality homes in 
a palette of materials in keeping with the local vernacular and 162 new trees would 
be planted to reduce localised flood risk and create a pleasant green environment 
with open spaces and equipment for natural play.  Alderton was considered to be a 
sustainable location for development within the Joint Core Strategy and, given the 
substantial need for housing – both within the borough and nationally – the 
applicant believed that the proposal was well-designed, national planning policy 
compliant and able to deliver the housing required immediately.  The applicant had 
resolved all highways and flooding comments with statutory consultees having no 
objection to the proposal and, should planning permission be granted, it would be 
in a position to commence development within the next twelve months with 
housing completions in a timely manner thereafter.  With that in mind, the applicant 
requested that the Committee permit the application. 

60.31  The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to refuse the application 
and he sought a motion from the floor.  It was proposed and seconded that the 
application be refused in accordance with the Officer recommendation.  The 
proposer of the motion raised particular concern about flooding, as outlined by the 
Parish Council.  He pointed out that Alderton had been subject to speculative 
development for some time but the facilities within the village, such as the village 
shop, were neither well-used nor viable with poor public transport creating reliance 
on the car.  The seconder of the motion indicated that Alderton Parish Council and 
the Neighbourhood Development Plan group had carried out consultation and 
collected evidence to demonstrate the impact of this development, and other 
developments, on social cohesion.  Page No. 172, Paragraph 7.7 of the Officer 
report set out that the Alderton Neighbourhood Development Plan was adopted as 
part of the development plan in 2018 but did not contain policies and allocations to 
meet its identified housing requirement; whilst there were specific reasons for this, 
it meant that Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework was not 
engaged.  The Member felt this needed to be looked at as there were a lot of 
Neighbourhood Development Plans which allocated existing developments or did 
not allocate sites at all so this could have a significant impact.  Another Member 
agreed this needed to be considered as a matter of urgency; however, he could 
not support the proposal as he could see nothing in the report to convince him that 
the authority would be able to defend an appeal should the application be refused.  
He disagreed with the housing land supply figures which he believed were 
considerably lower and, although he could not dispute the hard work of the Parish 
Council, he could not support a refusal when this would potentially be at the 
expense of the Council and would result in the local community losing control over 
the development.  In response to these comments, another Member recognised 
that the housing land supply figure was constantly changing and, though the 
developer was seeking to take advantage of the fact that the Council could not 
demonstrate a five year housing land supply and preferred to provide development 
outside of the strategic plan areas that had been allocated for that purpose, he was 
of the view that this particular battle was one worth fighting.  He did not agree with 

12



the comments made by the applicant in their statement and made particular 
reference to the fact that any jobs generated via construction of the development 
would not benefit local people.  As such, he would be supporting the proposal to 
refuse the application.  The proposer of the motion pointed out two appeal 
decisions for housing developments in Alderton where the Inspector had been in 
agreement with the Council so it was possible to take on developers and win in the 
right circumstances.  

60.32  Upon being taken to the vote, it was 

RESOLVED That the application be REFUSED in accordance with the 
Officer recommendation. 

 19/01205/FUL - 53 Wynyards Close, Tewkesbury  

60.33  This application was for the erection of a two storey rear extension. 

60.34  The Planning Officer explained that the proposal sought the erection of a two storey 
rear extension which would protrude into the garden by 1.6 metres.  Whilst there 
was some perceived harm to neighbouring amenity by way of a reduction in 
morning light to a ground floor window, as highlighted by the Town Council and 
adjoining neighbour, this was not considered to be sufficient to warrant a refusal, as 
such, the application was recommended for permission. 

60.35  The Chair indicated that a local resident had been due to speak in objection to the 
application; however, due to the exceptional circumstances associated with the 
coronavirus and the government advice in relation to that, the representative was 
not able to attend in person and it had been agreed that, on this occasion, the 
statement would be read out by the Planning Officer.  The statement set out that the 
local resident lived in a neighbouring property and felt that the proposed extension 
would have a detrimental impact on their quality of life.  The Planning Officer had 
decided that the loss of early morning light and the overshadowing to their property 
from the proposed extension was not a concern as the late afternoon and evening 
light would compensate; however, along with the Town Council, he would argue that 
the house would be further deprived of natural light during all times of the day.  The 
house was north facing and already suffered from low light within the kitchen/dining 
area during long winter months so any further overshadowing would have a huge 
impact.  As No. 53 Wynyards Close was the end house in a terraced row it had the 
option to extend to the side of the property where there was plenty of space; this 
would not overlook or encroach on any other property and meant that No. 53 could 
still be in extended in a way that would not impact on their quality of light and life 
with only some slight changes to the plans.  Finally, he felt the proposed extension 
would enclose their already small garden which was 5.5. metres wide – the rear 
window of their house already faced an apex garage 5.2 metres away – so they 
could not afford to lose any more valuable natural light from an already dark garden.  
Before a final decision was made, he would appreciate a Planning Committee Site 
Visit to their property and garden. 

60.36  The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to permit the application 
and he sought a motion from the floor.  It was proposed and seconded that the 
application be deferred for a Planning Committee Site visit to assess the impact of 
the proposal upon neighbouring residential amenity.  The proposer of the motion felt 
that this was only fair in view of the statement that had been read out on behalf of 
the local resident.  The Chair felt it should be borne in mind that it was unclear when 
the Planning Committee would next meet in view of the uncertainty around the 
national coronavirus pandemic so it could potentially be quite some time before a 
site visit could be undertaken and he questioned whether a deferral would be 
reasonable.  The Legal Adviser clarified that, despite the unusual circumstances, 
the question for Members remained whether they were in a position to determine 

13



the application today or whether they needed a site visit before a decision could be 
made.  The seconder of the motion expressed the view that the impact of the 
proposal upon the neighbouring property could last a lifetime so the fact there may 
be a delay in undertaking a site visit was not a reason not to have one.  A Member 
indicated that, based on his calculations, the extension would only protrude 1.6 
metres from the property so this would be quite a small extension which he did not 
feel would have a considerable impact in terms of loss of light given the angles of 
the sun.  In his view, regardless of the length of a deferral, he could not see what 
would be gained from a site visit.  The Planning Officer confirmed that a light 
assessment had been undertaken which had demonstrated that, whilst there would 
be an impact, it would not be significant enough to warrant a refusal; the garden 
was north facing meaning that the light would be reduced in the morning but not in 
the afternoon. 

60.37 Upon being put to the vote, the proposal for a deferral for a Committee Site Visit 
was lost. It was subsequently proposed and seconded that the application be 
permitted in accordance with the Officer recommendation and, upon being taken to 
the vote, it was 

RESOLVED  That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the 
Officer recommendation. 

 19/01194/FUL - Land East of Old Gloucester Road, Staverton  

60.38  This application was for change of use of land to provide nine travelling 
showperson’s plots and associated works including hardstanding. 

60.39  The Planning Officer explained that this application was identical to an earlier 
application which was currently the subject of a non-determination appeal 
scheduled to be held on 16 April 2020 with the Statement of Case due on 24 March 
2020.  At the Planning Committee meeting in January 2020, Members had resolved 
that they would have refused the application had they gone on to determine it; whilst 
they had been happy that very special circumstances existed to outweigh harm to 
the Green Belt, concerns had been raised in respect of the proposed site access 
and the ability to achieve suitable visibility splays.  Essentially, it was unclear 
whether the visibility splay to the north east could be provided on land entirely within 
the control of the Highway Authority.  In response to this, further information had 
been provided by the applicant which sought to provide some clarity on ownership 
of the land in question.  The Highways Officer had reviewed the additional 
information and was satisfied that the visibility splays could be provided over land 
within the control of the Highway Authority or the applicant; on that basis, a planning 
condition could be imposed to secure the visibility splays.  The additional 
information had been subject to further consultation, including writing directly to the 
adjacent landowner, and no further matters had arisen from that.  Given that the 
very special circumstances case remained the same and the outstanding highway 
matters had been addressed, the Officer recommendation was to permit the 
application. 

60.40  The Chair invited the applicant to address the Committee.  The applicant indicated 
that he wished to thank Officers for their hard work in bringing the application to the 
Committee so quickly.  

60.41 The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to permit the application 
and he sought a motion from the floor.  It was proposed and seconded that the 
application be permitted in accordance with the Officer recommendation.  The 
proposer of the motion indicated that he was happy to support the proposal on the 
basis of the very special circumstances that had been put forward which he felt 
would outweigh any harm to the Green Belt.  With regard to the site access 
arrangements, a Member pointed out that Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs) entered 

14



and exited the site on a daily basis but there were no plans showing them turning 
right and she sought clarification that vehicles could turn both ways.  In response 
the County Highways representative confirmed that the access was acceptable both 
in terms of the speed and visibility.  A lot of work had been carried out with the 
applicant who had been very agreeable to County Highways’ position in terms of 
securing appropriate conditions.  It was not uncommon for HGVs to want to use A or 
B roads so the design must be necessary for them to enter and exit the site; that 
would be possible, albeit at a slower pace than a car, and he provided assurance 
that visibility splays were designed for the exceptional as opposed to the regular so 
County Highways was fully satisfied that all vehicles could safely turn out of the site 
and onto the highway.  Another Member indicated that the site was within his Ward 
and it was interesting that it was recommended for permission given its location 
within the Green Belt.  The Member felt the very special circumstances case was 
similar to that put forward for other applications within his Ward which had been 
refused. 

60.42 Upon being put to the vote, it was 

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the 
Officer recommendation. 

 19/00758/OUT - Land at Homelands Farm, Gotherington Lane, Bishop's Cleeve  

60.43  This was a hybrid application – a full planning application for 65 residential units (to 
include affordable housing, public open space, associated highways and drainage 
infrastructure) and an outline planning application, with all matters reserved except 
access, for up to 200sqm (GIA) small scale employment use (B1 class) and 
associated demolition, parking and open space.  The application was deferred at 
the Planning Committee meeting on 18 February 2020 to allow Officers to address 
the issues raised in respect of education matters. 

60.44  The Planning Officer advised that, following the deferral of the application at 
Planning Committee in February, Officers had held discussions with Gloucestershire 
County Council and had reviewed the additional information submitted by the 
applicant’s agent in respect of the outstanding education matter.  In considering this 
information, the County Council had now withdrawn its objection to the proposal, 
subject to financial contributions being secured for education – pre-school, primary 
and secondary – via a Section 106 Agreement.  As set out in the original report, the 
County Council’s objection on the grounds of there being insufficient primary school 
spaces to meet the needs of the development formed the main reason for refusal.  
As that objection had now been withdrawn, the Officer recommendation had been 
amended to a delegated permit, subject to the drafting of planning conditions in line 
with consultee recommendations and as set out on the Additional Representations 
Sheet, attached at Appendix 1, and the resolution and completion of necessary 
planning obligations.  The applicant had previously confirmed they would be happy 
to enter into the required Section 106 Agreement for education, although Officers 
were still in the process of reviewing whether the County’s request met the relevant 
tests and would be justified in the context of the Community Infrastructure Levy 
regulations. 

60.45  The Chair invited the applicant’s agent to address the Committee.  The applicant’s 
agent explained that the proposal was for a mixed use development of housing and 
employment with the latter in outline to give maximum flexibility to respond to 
occupiers’ needs.  He pointed out that the proposal had been developed over the 
last two and half years to establish what the need in the area might be.  At the last 
Committee meeting, they had provided a Counsel opinion on the way the issue of 
education had been dealt with and that information was set out in the Additional 
Representations Sheet with Paragraph 35 outlining the benefits and possible 
adverse effects of the scheme and how they weighed in the planning balance.  As 

15



Gloucestershire County Council had withdrawn its objection, there were now no 
technical objections to the proposed development and the applicant had been 
working with Officers to consider draft conditions and an appropriate Section 106 
Agreement. 

60.46   The Chair indicated that the Officer recommendation was to delegate authority to 
the Technical Planning Manger to permit the application, subject to the drafting of 
planning conditions in line with consultee recommendations and as set out on the 
Additional Representations Sheet, and the resolution and completion of necessary 
planning obligations, and he invited a motion from the floor.  It was proposed and 
seconded that authority be delegated to the Technical Planning Manager to permit 
the application in accordance with the officer recommendation.  The seconder of the 
motion expressed her disappointment that the County Council had withdrawn its 
objection but, unfortunately, she could see no planning grounds to refuse the 
application.  A Member raised concern that a future application could come forward 
for additional housing in the area currently proposed for business use and he 
questioned whether anything could be done to ensure it was retained for that 
purpose.  The Technical Planning Manager clarified there were no guarantees and 
Members must make a decision on the application before them; should another 
application be submitted in future that must also be determined on its planning 
merits.  The proposer of the motion pointed out that the business use element of the 
proposal was on a piece of land that had been allocated as employment land in the 
emerging Tewkesbury Borough Plan but it only took up half of that allocation and he 
asked if there was a reason for that.  In addition, he felt that Members would benefit 
from an explanation as to the education matters which had resulted in the deferral at 
the previous Planning Committee meeting as that had not been discussed at the 
time.  Education in Bishop’s Cleeve - particularly primary education - was a critical 
issue and the site now proposed for housing had at one stage been put forward as a 
potential site for an education facility which the County Council had decided was not 
needed, as such, he would like to understand specifically what the County Council 
objection had been to this particular proposal.  In response to the first question 
regarding the land earmarked for employment use in the Tewkesbury Borough Plan, 
the Technical Planning Manager indicated that he did not know why the whole area 
had not come forward for business use; however, there were existing buildings to 
the east of the application site which were still in use so it may well be intended to 
continue using those buildings at this stage.  In terms of the County Council’s 
position at the last Committee, there was simply not enough capacity – current or 
planned – to be able to take any pupils arising from additional housing; the County 
Council had also submitted an objection to the Tewkesbury Borough Plan on that 
basis.  What had come to light since that time, as correctly submitted on behalf of 
the applicant, was that, in any event, the County Council had a statutory duty and 
objecting to an application because it could not meet that need would be very 
difficult.  His understanding was that the County Council had reflected on that and 
withdrawn the application on the basis that there was a plan for a new school in 
Bishop’s Cleeve and discussions were ongoing with regard to its location; whilst 
Members may not agree that the planned site was the correct one, that was not a 
matter for the Committee.  It would be very difficult for a local education authority to 
say to an Inspector at appeal that it had a site for a new school that would only meet 
the needs of existing development which could potentially be overcome for 
example,  by the applicant offering to pay for additional places to make it a three-
form entry school as opposed to a two-form entry school.  It was noted that the 
County Council had stated that Officers would be happy to meet local Members 
outside of the planning process to discuss its plans for moving forward in more 
detail.  The proposer of the motion thanked the Technical Planning Manager for the 
explanation which helped greatly with his understanding of the complicated issue. 

 

16



 

60.47 A Member raised concern that the site had originally been allocated for 30 homes 
but this application was for 65 and he could not support a proposal for that number 
of houses.  Another Member pointed out that Bishop’s Cleeve was now larger than 
Tewkesbury but had no real infrastructure and he felt that Members needed to stand 
up to developers.  He indicated that he would be requesting a recorded vote on this 
application at the appropriate point. During the debate which ensued, a Member 
advised that she would not be supporting the application on the basis of the lack of 
an education facility and residents’ strong feelings about the proposed new school 
site.  A Member reminded the Committee that, when the application had been 
considered at the meeting in February, she had specifically asked for a firm offer 
from the County Council regarding the school and she did not feel that it had gone 
far enough in giving any guarantees; in her view the situation had not changed since 
the deferral, as such, she could not support the proposal.  The seconder of the 
motion for a delegated permit recognised that several Members were unwilling to 
support the proposal and, if they could provide an appropriate planning reason for 
refusal, she would be happy to reconsider her position.  The proposer of the motion 
agreed with the seconder and wished to respond to some of the comments that had 
been made during the debate.  As far as education was concerned, he wanted to 
understand the County Council’s position in terms of the wider context, not in terms 
of this particular application – the need for Gloucestershire County Council to find a 
suitable site to provide a significant educational facility for Bishop’s Cleeve was a 
different question and that issue was not relevant to this application.  In terms of the 
point about the likelihood of winning an appeal should the application be refused, he 
reiterated his earlier comment in relation to the importance of choosing the right 
battles; this site was allocated for residential development within the Tewkesbury 
Borough Plan so the Council had already determined that it was suitable for 
housing, whether that be 30 or 65 houses.  He stressed that he was not proposing a 
delegated permit because he wanted to see yet more housing in Bishop’s Cleeve 
but the reality was that the authority had accepted it as a housing site and refusing 
the application would be a futile gesture.  In putting forward some justification for a 
refusal, a Member suggested that, whilst the benefits arising from the proposal were 
substantial, the identified harms, particularly the absence of capacity to meet the 
needs of primary age children arising from the development, significantly and 
demonstrably outweighed the benefits in this case; and the lack of social 
infrastructure to support the proposal would fail to achieve a healthy, inclusive and 
safe community and would not represent sustainable development contrary to the 
provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.  The Technical Planning 
Manager explained that the justification provided by the Member reflected the 
Officers’ position at the last Committee when there was an objection to the proposal 
from the local education authority; however, that was no longer the case.  Despite 
there being no firm plan at this stage, the County Council was the statutory provider 
of school places and there was no justifiable reason for refusal – having taken 
advice, this was a very clear and firm stance and to refuse the application on those 
grounds would put the authority in a position an Inspector would find unreasonable 
and it would therefore be at risk of costs being awarded should there be an appeal.  
The Member indicated that it was not just the school position but the total lack of 
any social infrastructure whatsoever and that had not changed since the last 
meeting of the Committee.  In terms of refusal reasons, another Member suggested 
that the proposal was deviating from the masterplan for 30 houses and three 
different developers had promised two community buildings but not one brick had 
been laid so he felt the lack of infrastructure was a good enough reason.  A Member 
went on to express the view that the site had been earmarked for a school in the 
masterplan and it was probably an oversight that it had not been stipulated at the 
time that, should the school not come forward on the site, the land should form part 
of the open space; he felt this was a lesson everyone could learn in future when 

17



masterplanning sites in order to prevent situations like this. 

60.48 The Chair indicated that he had a proposal on the table for a recorded vote on the 
motion for a delegated permission in accordance with the Officer recommendation.  
Upon receiving the appropriate support, the vote was recorded as follows: 

For  Against Abstain Absent  

R A BIRD R D EAST E J 
MACTIERNAN 

L A GERRARD 

G F BLACKWELL D J HARWOOD A S REECE R J G SMITH 

J H EVETTS A HOLLAWAY  P D SURMAN 

M A GORE M L JORDAN  M J WILLIAMS 

J R MASON P W OCKELTON   

R J E VINES P E SMITH   

P N WORKMAN    

60.49 With seven votes in favour and six against, it was therefore 

RESOLVED That authority be DELEGATED to the Technical Planning 
Manager to PERMIT the application, subject to the drafting of 
planning conditions in line with consultee recommendations and 
as set out on the Additional Representations Sheet, attached at 
Appendix 1, and the resolution and completion of necessary 
planning obligations. 

 20/00081/PIP - Land to the West of the A48, Minsterworth  

60.50 This application was for residential development of between four and eight 
dwellings.   

60.51 The Planning Officer advised that the application was for permission in principle for 
residential development of between four and eight dwellings on land to the west of 
the A38 in Minsterworth.  The application had been brought to the Committee 
following an objection from the Parish Council.  Members were reminded that, as 
with all planning in principle applications, the matters for consideration were limited 
to location, amount and land use.  The proposal was located outside of the 
emerging settlement boundary for Minsterworth and conflicted with Joint Core 
Strategy Policy SD10; however, Officers considered the proposal to be well-located 
in respect of neighbouring development and that it would not extend westward into 
the countryside to any greater extent than the adjoining development.  Officers were 
satisfied that up to eight dwellings could be accommodated on site in a linear form 
and both the land use and amount of development was therefore accepted.  Taking 
account of the Council’s five year housing land supply position, it was concluded 
that the adverse impacts of the proposal would not significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits and it was recommended that permission in principle be 
granted.  Members would recall considering permission in principle applications for 
the neighbouring parcel of land, immediately to the north of the current application 
site, in August and October 2019; on both occasions permission was refused on the 
grounds that it would conflict with the development plan and would cause landscape 
harm.  An appeal had been lodged against the refusal which had subsequently been 
allowed and an overview of the Inspector’s decision was included in the Current 

18



Appeals and Appeal Decisions Update at Agenda Item 6. 

60.52 The Chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item.  The Officer 
recommendation was to permit the application and he sought a motion from the 
floor.  A Member indicated that he had huge reservations regarding the application 
due to the dangerous road but he recognised that was not an appropriate reason to 
refuse a permission in principle application.  The Chair sought clarification as to 
whether a full application would need to be submitted if a permission in principle 
application was granted and whether the proposal could be refused at that point 
should the access be considered dangerous or unsuitable.  The Technical Planning 
Manager explained that it was a two part process; permission in principle was 
somewhere between pre-application advice and an outline planning application and 
the second stage was a technical details application which looked at the technical 
issues.  If it could be demonstrated that the development was unsuitable for a 
variety of reasons – including highway reasons – then it could be refused on that 
basis at the technical details stage.  If there was no prospect whatsoever that 
development would be acceptable on the site then permission in principle could be 
refused but, in terms of the application before Members, permission in principle had 
already been granted on appeal for the adjoining parcel of land to the north and, 
given that the Inspector had taken the view that it was not possible to say there was 
no prospect of access being achieved on that site, it would be difficult to say that 
development could not take place on this site as access could theoretically be 
gained from the adjoining site.   

60.53 The Chair sought a comment from the County Highways representative who 
explained that, from a highways perspective, it was a simple exercise to state 
whether access could or could not be achieved and he provided assurance that 
County Highways wanted to achieve an appropriate form of access off a classified 
road - particularly in view of the specific safety issues in this case as evidenced by 
the speed camera in situ - so this would be thoroughly assessed at the technical 
details stage, should Members be minded to permit the permission in principle 
application.  A Member felt that the Inspector’s decision to allow the appeal had 
given solace to the applicant when the proposal would never be suitable in highway 
safety terms and he indicated that if a full application had been put forward then it 
would at least be possible to secure affordable housing; he did not believe that 
solace should be given to speculative developers.  The Technical Planning Manager 
provided assurance that developers understood the process and that the technical 
details would be considered at that stage.  Given the appeal decision and the 
Inspector’s conditions he did not think it was possible to determine there was 
absolutely no way that an acceptable access could be achieved from the site and it 
was to be borne in mind that a costs claim had been made by the appellant at the 
previous appeal, albeit one that had been successfully defended in that appeal.  
With regard to the point about affordable housing, he explained that the two 
developments together would be likely to breach the threshold of 10 for affordable 
housing; this was a very new situation and he had not seen any case law on it but, 
from his perspective, the Technical Planning Manager did not see why that could 
not be taken into account at the technical details stage.  The Legal Adviser clarified 
that planning policy guidance set out that local authorities may agree planning 
obligations at the technical details stage but these could not be secured at the 
permission in principle stage.  A Member indicated that, when applications were 
refused and went to appeal, if they were overturned by an Inspector then the local 
authority could lose control over what happened on site and she sought clarification 
as to the situation with permission in principle applications.  The Technical Planning 
Manager advised that the authority would probably retain more control if the 
permission in principle application was allowed as the technical details application 
was still to come forward; the technical details stage was much more controlled than 
the reserved matters stage where a lot of the issues would have been dealt with at 
the outline stage. 

19



60.54 Having considered the information provided and views expressed, it was proposed 
and seconded that the application be permitted in accordance with the Officer 
recommendation and, upon being put to the vote, it was 

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the 
Officer recommendation. 

 19/01083/FUL - 1 Severn Close, Maisemore  

60.55  This application was for the installation of a new access and dropped kerb.   

60.56 The Planning Officer advised that the proposal was for a new access and dropped 
kerb off the main A417 in Maisemore.  A Committee determination was required as 
the Parish Council had objected on the grounds that there was already adequate 
access and it may cause congestion on the bend.  The Parish Council’s concerns 
had been noted; however, the County Highways Officer had raised no objections in 
terms of highway impact or safety.  The new access was required as delivery 
vehicles struggled to access Severn Close due to the tight bend on the entrance.  
Overall, the proposal was considered to be acceptable from a highway safety 
perspective and in terms of visual amenity, therefore the Officer recommendation 
was to permit the application. 

60.57 The Chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item.  The Officer 
recommendation was to permit the application and he sought a motion from the 
floor.  It was proposed and seconded that the application be permitted in 
accordance with the Officer recommendation and, upon being put to the vote, it was 

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the 
Officer recommendation. 

PL.61 CURRENT APPEALS AND APPEAL DECISIONS UPDATE  

61.1 Attention was drawn to the current appeals and appeal decisions update, circulated 
at Pages No. 293-299.  Members were asked to consider the current planning and 
enforcement appeals received and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government appeal decisions issued. 

61.2  A Member noted that 19/00192/FUL Land on the East Side of Broadway Road, 
Stanway had been dismissed on appeal.  She pointed out that there was a current 
application for the same site which made some changes to the proposal and she 
questioned whether this would require a Committee determination based on its 
sensitivity and the fact that the Committee had dealt with the majority of the 
application phases.  The Technical Planning Manager noted these comments and 
undertook to update local Members following the meeting.  In response to a further 
query in relation to the appeal, assurance was provided that this was being 
considered from an enforcement point of view and as regards the revised 
application.   

61.3 A Member asked for an update on the appeal that had been received in respect of 
19/00246/FUL Parcel 5762, Land Adjacent Rudgeley House, Cold Pool Lane, 
Badgeworth and was informed that there was no update as yet but Members would 
be advised as soon as any information was available. 

61.4  It was 

RESOLVED That the current appeals and appeal decisions update be 
NOTED. 

 The meeting closed at 12:48 pm 

 

20



Appendix 1 
 
 

 
ADDITIONAL 
REPRESENTATIONS SHEET 

 

Date: 17 March 2020 
 
The following is a list of the additional representations received since the publication 
of the Planning Agenda and includes background papers received up to and including 
the Monday before the meeting. A general indication of the content is given but it may 
be necessary to elaborate at the meeting. 

 
 

Page 
No 

Item 
No 

 

78 5d 19/00722/FUL 
Land At Berry Wormington, Stanway Road, Stanton 
Discussions in respect of the outstanding matters highlighted at Paragraph 8.2 of 
the Officer report have been ongoing and an update in respect of these matters is 
set out below: 

Landscaping 
The principles of a landscaping scheme have been discussed with the applicant 
which would include the reinstatement of a new hedge line inside of the visibility 
splay onto B4623 and the new access drive as it returns into the site, tree and 
hedgerow planting along an existing post and rail fence through the central part of 
the site and tree planting to the southwestern boundary to the site. These 
measures would be acceptable in principle and would ensure satisfactory 
screening to the development however the precise details including position, size, 
species and mix of new planting along with its implementation and future 
maintenance would be adequately controlled by Condition 6 as set out in the 
Officer report. 

Lighting 
The design of the store/workshop has been revised in order to remove the 10 
originally proposed roof lights, which will minimize the impact of any internal 
lighting upon the night sky. The applicant has advised that the specific lighting 
requirements to the building/site are yet to be determined and it is considered that 
a satisfactory scheme in order to protect the dark skies of the AONB can be 
adequately controlled by Conditions 4 (precise details), 14 (PIR control) and 15 
(no further lighting) as set out in the Officer report. 

Pollution control 
A waste/manure management plan has been received (attached). The details are 
being considered by the Council's Flood Risk Management Engineer. The 
operation of the site in accordance with an approved pollution/waste management 
strategy would be controlled by Condition 5 as set out in the Officer report. 

Apron 
Revised drawings (attached) have been received to define the area of apron 
associated with the proposed buildings and this is considered to be appropriate to 
the nature and size of the proposed development. 

 

21



Recommendation 
That permission is granted subject to the conditions set out in the Officer report and 
as amended below: 

Condition 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
drawing nos. CTP-19-109 SK01 and 3513008A-SSM 001 A3 received by the 
Local Planning Authority on 16th July 2019 and drawing nos.4804-101C, Location 
Plan - Building 1 and site plan 1:2500 at A3 received by the Local Planning 
Authority on 11th March 2020 except where these may be modified by any other 
conditions attached to this permission. 

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans. 

13. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the levels set out on 
drawing no.4804-101C. 

Reason: In order to minimise the impact of the development upon the wider 
landscape. 

96 5e 19/00723/FUL 
Land At Berry Wormington, Stanway Road, Stanton 
Discussions in respect of the outstanding matters highlighted at Paragraph 8.2 of 
the Officer report have been ongoing and an update in respect of these matters is 
set out below: 

Landscaping 
The principles of a landscaping scheme have been discussed with the applicant 
which would include the reinstatement of a new hedge line inside of the visibility 
splay onto B4623 and the new access drive as it returns into the site, tree and 
hedgerow planting along an existing post and rail fence through the central part of 
the site and tree planting to the southwestern boundary to the site. These 
measures would be acceptable in principle and would ensure satisfactory 
screening to the development, however the precise details including position, size, 
species and mix of new planting along with its implementation and future 
maintenance would be adequately controlled by Condition 6 as set out in the 
Officer report. 

Lighting 
The design of the store/workshop has been revised in order to remove the 10 
originally proposed roof lights, which will minimize the impact of any internal 
lighting upon the night sky. The applicant has advised that the specific lighting 
requirements to the building/site are yet to be determined and it is considered that 
a satisfactory scheme in order to protect the dark skies of the AONB can be 
adequately controlled by Conditions 4 (precise details), 14 (PIR control) and 15 
(no further lighting) as set out in the Officer report. 

Pollution control 
A waste/manure management plan has been received (attached). The details are 
being considered by the Council's Flood Risk Management Engineer. The 
operation of the site in accordance with an approved pollution/waste management 
strategy would be controlled by Condition 5 as set out in the Officer report. 

 

 

 

22



Apron 
Revised drawings (attached) have been received to define the area of apron 
associated with the proposed buildings and this is considered to be appropriate to 
the nature and size of the proposed development. 

Recommendation 
That permission is granted subject to the conditions set out in the Officer report and 
as amended below: 

Conditions 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
drawing nos. CTP-19-109 SK01 and 3513008A-SSM 001 A3 received by the 
Local Planning Authority on 16th July 2019 and drawing nos.4804-102C, Location 
Plan - Building 2 and site plan 1:2500 at A3 received by the Local Planning 
Authority on 11th March 2020 except where these may be modified by any other 
conditions attached to this permission. 

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans. 

13. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the levels set out on 
drawing no.4804-102C. 

Reason: In order to minimise the impact of the development upon the wider 
landscape. 

115 5f 19/00724/FUL 
Land At Berry Wormington, Stanway Road, Stanton 
Discussions in respect of the outstanding matters highlighted at Paragraph 8.2 of 
the Officer report have been ongoing and an update in respect of these matters is 
set out below: 

Landscaping 
The principles of a landscaping scheme have been discussed with the applicant 
which would include the reinstatement of a new hedge line inside of the visibility 
splay onto B4623 and the new access drive as it returns into the site, tree and 
hedgerow planting along an existing post and rail fence through the central part of 
the site and tree planting to the southwestern boundary to the site. These 
measures would be acceptable in principle and would ensure satisfactory 
screening to the development however the precise details including position, size, 
species and mix of new planting along with its implementation and future 
maintenance would be adequately controlled by Condition 6 as set out in the 
Officer report. 

Lighting 
The design of the store/workshop has been revised in order to remove the 10 
originally proposed roof lights, which will minimize the impact of any internal 
lighting upon the night sky. The applicant has advised that the specific lighting 
requirements to the building/site are yet to be determined and it is considered that 
a satisfactory scheme in order to protect the dark skies of the AONB can be 
adequately controlled by Conditions 4 (precise details), 14 (PIR control) and 15 
(no further lighting) as set out in the Officer report. 

 

 

 

23



Pollution control 
A waste/manure management plan has been received (attached). The details are 
being considered by the Council's Flood Risk Management Engineer. The 
operation of the site in accordance with an approved pollution/waste management 
strategy would be controlled by Condition 5 as set out in the Officer report. 
Apron 
Revised drawings (attached) have been received to define the area of apron 
associated with the proposed buildings and this is considered to be appropriate to 
the nature and size of the proposed development. 

Recommendation 
That permission is granted subject to the conditions set out in the Officer report 
and as amended below: 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
drawing nos. CTP-19-109 SK01 and 3513008A-SSM 001 A3 received by the 
Local Planning Authority on 16th July 2019 and drawing nos.4804-104C, Location 
Plan - Building 2 and site plan 1:2500 at A3 received by the Local Planning 
Authority on 11th March 2020 except where these may be modified by any other 
conditions attached to this permission. 

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans. 

13. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the levels set out on 
drawing no.4804-104C. 

Reason: In order to minimise the impact of the development upon the wider 
landscape. 

163 5h 19/00772/FUL 
Land Parcel 0088, Willow Bank Road, Alderton 
Further representations 

Following the publication of the Officer report, three additional letters of objection 
have been received from local resident; however, no additional matters have been 
raised. 

Ecology 

As set out at Paragraph 7.53 of the Officer report, additional information was 
submitted to the Council in respect of the potential effects of the proposed 
development on local European sites (Dixton Wood and Bredon Hill SACs). The 
Council's Ecology Consultant has now reviewed the information and confirms that 
the applicant has demonstrated that the development would result in positive 
Biodiversity Net Gain provided the landscaping plan is followed and hedgerows 
are retained. However, it should be noted that the applicant has still not clarified 
how much of the hedgerow along Willow Bank Road would need to be removed in 
order to accommodate the proposed site access. The Ecological Consultant also 
confirms that the applicant has demonstrated that the proposal would not have 
any significant impacts on nearby SACs. 

On the basis that the roadside hedgerow is largely retained, the proposal is 
considered to be acceptable from a biodiversity perspective and recommended 
reason for refusal 7 can be removed. If it later transpires that additional hedgerow 
needs to be removed to accommodate a safe and suitable site access, this may 
need to be readdressed in an appeal situation. 

 

24



Highways 

Following further consultation with the Highways Officer, it is reiterated that there 
is no footway that would connect the village to the development, which is essential 
to ensure that Alderton's services and facilities can be accessed. These services 
and facilities helped to designate Alderton as a Service Village and it is essential 
that there is safe and segregated pedestrian connectivity into the village. The lack 
of suitable pedestrian facilities also raises issues for people with mobility 
concerns.  People with wheelchairs, mobility scooters, walking stabilisers and 
pushchairs would be sharing a narrow route with motor vehicles without any 
protection. The lack of passing places and edge of the road/verge conditions 
would frequently push the pedestrian further into the carriageway and into a more 
unsafe position. The carriageway is also not suitable for people who have mobility 
supporting apparatus, as it is a carriageway with uneven surfaces. This would 
reduce their confidence and ability to use the route, thereby preventing access to 
the village without a vehicle. 

With regard to cycling, the Highways Officer further points out that village schools 
are often ideal locations to promote sustainable trips and many schools 
encourage cycling and walking to school. The lack of any cycle or pedestrian 
segregated routes from the development into the main village would either lead to 
more car trips, which is unsustainable, or result in children using the only route to 
the village, which is a carriageway shared with vehicular traffic. The Highways 
Officer considers that this is an unacceptable situation for safety and sustainability 
reasons. 

In terms of the site access itself, this is located on a section of the main route into 
Alderton, with the proposed junction being in the exact spot where the speed gate 
for 30mph begins. To build the junction the speed gate would have to be moved to 
a new location. This would require a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO), which 
requires a road safety audit and consultation with statutory bodies and the local 
residents. There is no assurance to the granting of a TRO or weight given because 
a development that requires it to begin construction has been granted planning 
permission. There is a risk that local and statutory objections and representations 
may not allow the TRO to be enacted and the development would then be unable 
to proceed. 

The Highways Officer further advises that the visibility splays can only be 
achieved by removing a substantial amount of hedgerow and vegetation. The 
splays are also dependent on the 30mph boundary being moved. The submitted 
access drawing shows the splays have been designed for 37mph traffic using the 
highway. Should the 30mph zone not happen or it be moved closer to the village 
rather than away from the village, the highway will remain at the relevant National 
Speed Limit of 60mph. This would make the designed visibility splays unsuitable. 
Consequently, there are too many dependencies on the access junction for a 
secure assessment that would be considered safe to be undertaken. As it stands 
the Highway Authority does not believe the design is safe. In light of this, a further 
reason for refusal is recommended on highway safety grounds as follows: 

'The proposed development, by virtue of its nature, scale and location, would fail 
to ensure that future residents could access sustainable means of transport and 
avoid private car reliance to access employment, education, retail and leisure 
facilities to car dependent destinations such as Tewkesbury, Cheltenham or 
Gloucester. The proposed design also fails to give priority to pedestrian and cycle 
movements within the scheme and neighbouring areas of Alderton and fails to 
address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all 
modes of transport. As such, the proposed development conflicts with Policy INF1 
of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2011-2031 
(December 2017), Policy RP1 of Alderton Neighbourhood Development Plan (July 

25



2018) and the National Planning Policy Framework.' 

The applicant has provided a summary note from Rural Solutions (as attached) in 
respect of the proposal. 

235 5k 19/00758/OUT 
Land At Homelands Farm, Gotherington Lane, Bishop’s Cleeve 
Officers have been liaising with Gloucestershire County Council’s Education 
Department in light of additional information (see attached) provided by the 
applicant in respect of education matters. Following the consideration of this 
additional information, the County Council has formally withdrawn its objection to 
the proposal, subject to financial contributions being secured for education (pre-
school, primary and secondary) by way of a S106 agreement. The updated 
response from the County Council, dated 13 March 2020, is attached. 

Given the original objection comprised the main reason for refusal, it follows that 
the Officer recommendation has been amended as a result of the updated 
position. The absence of capacity to meet the needs of primary school children 
arising from the development is no longer recognised as an identified harm on the 
basis that this issue is resolvable by securing the requested monetary sum 
through a S106 agreement. The benefits arising from the proposal are substantial 
and it is not considered that the proposals would result in any adverse impacts 
that would significantly and demonstrably outweigh these benefits when assessed 
against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole. Nevertheless, the County 
Council has not at this stage provided evidence to justify the contributions 
requested in the context of the CIL regulations (Regulation 122). 

It is therefore recommended that authority is delegated to the Technical 
Planning Manager to permit the application, subject to the drafting of 
planning conditions as appropriate (including standard time limits, 
approved plans, levels, materials, landscaping details, drainage, highways, 
informal play equipment, tree protection, external lighting, ecological 
mitigation and biodiversity measures), resolution of education matters and 
the completion of planning obligations to secure affordable housing, waste 
and recycling, and education and library provision if those contribution 
would be justified and lawful in the context of regulation 122 of the CIL 
regulations. 

 

26



Item 5d – 19/00722/FUL, Land At Berry Wormington, Stanway Road, Stanton - multiple 
plans 

 
 

27



 

 

28



 

29



 

30



 

31



 

32



 

33



 

34



 

35



 

36



 

37



Item 5e – 19/00723/FUL, Land At Berry Wormington, Stanway Road, Stanton - multiple 
plans 

 

38



 

 

39



 

40



Item 5f - 19/00724/FUL, Land At Berry Wormington, Stanway Road, Stanton - multiple 
plans 

 

41



 

 

42



 
 
 
 

43



 
Item 5h – 19/00772/FUL – Land Parcel 0088, Willow Bank Road, Alderton 
 

 
 

44



Item 5k – 19/00758/OUT, Land At Homelands Farm, Gotherington Lane, 
Bishops Cleeve  

 
 

45



 

 

46



 

 

47



 

 

48



 

 

49



 

 

50



 

 

51



 

 

52



 

53



 
 
 

 

54



 
 
 

 

55



 
 
 

 

56



 
 
 

 

57



 
 
 
 

 

58



 
 
 

 

59



 

 

60



 
 

 

61



 
 

 

62



 
 

 

63



 
 

 

64



 
 

 

65



 
 

 

66



 
 
 

 

67



 
 
 

 

68



 
 
 

 

69



 
 
 

 

70



 
 
 

 

71



 
 
 

 
 

72



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL – DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
 

Committee: Planning 
  
Date: 19 March 2020 
  
Site Location: The Traffic Group Limited, White Lion House, Gloucester Road, 

Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL51 0TF 
  
Application No: 19/01225/FUL 
  
Ward: Badgeworth 
  
Parish: Staverton 
  
Proposal: Two-storey extension to existing production building (Use Class B1 

(c)) and reconfiguration to and extension of existing car park 
  
Report by: Paul Instone 
  
Appendices: Site location and layout plan 

Floor Plans and Elevations as Existing  
Floor Plans and Elevations as Proposed 

  
Recommendation: Permit 
 

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL 
  
1.1 The application relates to an existing light production building known as Unicorn 

House and its associated car park which is currently in use by the Traffic Group 
Limited. The building is a rendered, two storey pitched roof structure located in a 
prominent position near the junction of the B4063 Gloucester Road and 
Bamfurlong Lane.  

  
1.2 To the east of building which is subject to this application is building known as 

White Lion House, which is situated on the corner of B4063 Gloucester Road and 
Bamfurlong Lane. White Lion House is also occupied by the Traffic Group Limited. 
To the front and sides of both buildings on the application site is an area of 
hardstanding car parking which provide a total of 25 car parking spaces.  To the 
west of the area of car parking is an area of cleared ground which formerly 
contained a number of trees, which were cleared prior to the submission of the 
application. 

  
1.3 To the south of the application site is the Bamfurlong Industrial Estate, and to the 

north of the site is the B4063, beyond which are a number of dwellings including 
properties within Cotwold Court Park Mobile Home Park.  To the east of the site 
beyond Bamfurlong Lane are dwellings within Staverton Mobile Home Park.  
Access and egress to the site is via the B4063. 

  
1.4 The application site is located within a Major Employment Site as defined on the 

Local Plan Proposal Maps and is in Flood Zone 1. 
  

73

Agenda Item 5a



1.5 The planning application is submitted in full and seeks a two storey extension to 
the west of Unicorn House to provide an additional storage and production area, as 
well as the reconfiguration and extension of the car park to the west of Unicorn 
House into the area formerly covered by trees to provide a total of 38 on-site 
spaces.  The application also proposes the planting of a new hedgerow and trees 
to the front of car park adjacent to the B4063.   

  
2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 

Application 
Number 

Proposal Decision Decision 
Date    

93/00384/FUL Change of use of former public house to Class B1 
use. 

PER 26.06.1993 

96/00325/FUL Erection of two storey side extension PER 25.06.1996 

97/00145/FUL Erection of two storey side extension to White Lion 
House  (revised scheme) 

PER 06.05.1997 

98/00057/FUL Demolition, reconstruction and enlargement of 
lean-to structure 

PER 23.02.1998 

98/00616/FUL Demolition, reconstruction and enlargement of 
lean-to structure to rear incorporating new entrance 
lobby, disabled toilet and minor alterations to front 
elevation 

PER 15.07.1998 

98/01104/FUL Erection of a single storey building and an 
extension to the existing car park 

PER 06.01.1999 

99/01301/FUL Demolition of single storey prefabricated building 
and erection of two storey production building 

PER 23.05.2000 

03/00794/FUL Demolition of single storey prefabricated building 
and erection of two storey production building 

PER 06.08.2003 

08/01589/FUL Two storey extension to rear to provide office and 
research and development space. 

APPEAL 
DISMISSED 

11.03.2009 

09/00995/FUL Two storey extension to rear to provide offices and 
research and development space (revised scheme) 

PER 01.12.2009 

19/01225/FUL Two-storey extension to existing production building 
(Use Class B1 (c)) and reconfiguration to and 
extension of existing car park 

  

 

3.0 RELEVANT POLICY 
  
3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this 

application: 
  
 National guidance 
 National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (NPPF) 

Planning Practice Guidance 
  

74



 The Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy 2017 
 SD1 – Employment – except retail development 

SD3 – Sustainable Design and Construction 
SD4 – Design Requirements 
SD6 – Landscape 
SD8 – Historic Environment 
SD9 – Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
SD14 – Health and Environmental Quality 
INF1 – Transport Network 
INF2 – Flood Risk Management 
INF3 – Green Infrastructure 

  
 Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011; March 2006 (TBLP) 
 EMP1 – Major Employment Sites 
  
 Preferred Options Consultation, Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 (2018): 
 EMP1 – Major Employment Sites 

EMP5 – New Employment Development (General) 
NAT1 – Biodiversity, Geodiversity and Important Natural Features 
ENV2 – Flood Risk and Water Management 
TRAC1 – Pedestrian Accessibility 
TRAC9 – Parking Provision 

  
 Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life) 
  
 The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property) 
  
4.0 CONSULTATIONS 
  
4.1 Staverton Parish Council – Object for the following reasons: 

 
- At roof height the building will have an impact on the residents opposite whose 

dwellings are on a lower level . 
- The new buildings will dominate the surrounding area. 
- The new buildings will be built nearer the road if they follow the existing building 

line, and the homes and gardens opposite lose complete privacy. 
- There are inconsistencies in these plans. The position of the existing building in the 

drawings provided is inconsistent with the actual Ordnance Survey-derived building 
position. As such, the position of the proposed structure, as drawn in 21824/O3 will 
also be incorrect (as these buildings will be adjoining). 

- The site plan does not show the several mobile homes opposite the site 
- The increased traffic will have an impact on this road (noise included) plus the fact 

that the only entrance/exit to this site is at a busy junction and bus stop. Currently 
traffic can drive down the side of the building and unload at the storage area doors 
passing parked cars along that area, in future there will only be just enough room 
for a single line of traffic. 

- The proposed extension will dominate the landscape. 
- Anyone on the upper floors will almost look straight into a neighbouring property 
- Clarification should be sought about whether the applicant had the right to cut down 

the mature trees 
- Access on and off the main road adjacent to a bus stop and traffic lights is a 

serious issue surrounding safety of road users and pedestrians  
- The security lighting is causing a concern to residents as it should shine down and 

not directly across the road 
- New good trees should be planted to benefit the wildlife which has been effected by 

75



the felling of the mature trees 
- The existing fencing around the proposed car park is in a poor state of repair and 

needs to be replaced  
 

Gloucestershire County Council Highways – No objections subject to conditions 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority – No comments to make as this is not a major application 
 
Land Drainage Advice – No comments received 
 
Gloucestershire Airport Ltd – No comments received 
 
Environmental Health Officer – No objection in terms of any noise/nuisance issues 

  
5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS 
  
5.1 The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21 

days. 
 
4 objections have been received (summarised) 

- The existing building and proposed extension is shown to be in an incorrect 
location and the mobile homes/new permanent dwellings are not shown on the 
plans so the impact of the proposal cannot be accurately assessed. (Officer note: 
The dwellings opposite have subsequently been added to the plans and the 
topographical survey confirms the building is in the correct position). 

- The upper floor windows and fire escape to the west will allow people to overlook 
ground and first floor windows and the private amenity space of the dwellings to the 
north of the proposed extension. 

- The application does not propose any obscure glazing to prevent overlooking of 
nearby dwellings. 

- The extension to the building would dominate the streetscene and affect outlook 
from residential properties and have an overbearing impact. 

- The proposal would increase traffic on an already busy junction. 
- The proposal would give rise to additional noise, artificial light and air pollution. 
- The proposal will block natural light to nearby residential dwellings. 
- The building should not be allowed external fans as ones which are already present 

in the vicinity impact on residential amenity. 
- The form of the building would deflect noise pollution from the B4063 towards the 

dwellings to the north cause a detrimental impact on residential amenity 
- The additional stationary traffic would give rise to increased air pollution 
- The trees may have been cut down without the relevant permissions and the 

application should be determined on the basis that trees are in situ. 
- The loss of the trees has impacted on the visual amenity of the area and exposed 

areas of fencing which are visually poor. 
- The loss of the trees has got rid of natural screening which reduced noise, artificial 

light and air pollution from the industrial estate and airport to the south. 
- The construction process will result in more detrimental impact on the residential 

amenity of residents through additional noise and vibrations. 
- Existing floodlights on Uniform House already impact on adjacent properties and 

these have had to adjusted further to intervention by Environmental Health.  An 
extension to the building will mean further floodlights which will impact on 
residential amenity and cause sleepless nights. 

- The proposal will impact on house prices and leave residents trapped in their 
homes. 

- There is already too much industry within the area which is impacting on residential 

76



amenity.  This is also a residential area and the further growth of industry should 
be restricted to protect residential amenity. 

- Increased vehicle movements adjacent to the bus stop may impede the safety of 
those using the bus stop. 

- The character and charm of the original pub premises on this site has been eroded 
by unsympathetic additions to the built form on the site. The site is now 
overdeveloped and further development should be resisted 

- The proposal shows no provision for the turning and access of large goods vehicles 
although a delivery entrance is shown on the plan. The lack of adequate provision 
will impede traffic flow. 

  
6.0 POLICY CONTEXT 
  
6.1 The determination of a planning application is to be made pursuant to section 38(6) of the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which is to be read in conjunction with 
section 70(2) of The Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  Section 38(6) requires the 
local planning authority to determine planning applications in accordance with the 
development plan, unless there are material circumstances which "indicate otherwise".  
Section 70(2) provides that in determining applications the local planning authority '"shall 
have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as material to the application 
and to any other materials considerations."   

  
6.2 The development plan comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017) and saved policies 

in the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP). 
  
6.3 Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within 

the National Planning Policy Framework and the emerging Tewkesbury Borough Local 
Plan (Preferred Options Consultation) 2011-2031. 

  
6.4 The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report. 
  
7.0 ANALYSIS 
  
 Principle  
  
7.1 Paragraph 80 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should create the conditions in 

which businesses can invest, expand and adapt and significant weight should be placed on 
the need to support economic growth and productivity. 

  
7.2 The application site is located within a defined Major Employment Site and Policy EMP1 of 

the Local Plan states that within existing Major Employment Sites as defined on the 
Proposal Map, the Borough Council will support proposals for B1, B2 and B8 uses.  Policy 
EMP1 of the PSTBP echoes these requirements. 

  
7.3 The broad principle of the proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable and there are 

clear economic benefits arising from the proposal which would support an existing local 
business. Given the policy context the presumption is therefore that permission should be 
granted subject to an overall assessment against other planning considerations, which are 
set out in the remaining sections of this report. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

77



 Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings 
  
7.4 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that 

new development is appropriate for its location taking account the likely effects (including 
cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as 
well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise from 
the development. Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no 
harm to local amenity including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. 

  
7.5 There are a number of mobile and permanent dwellings located to the north of the 

application site beyond the B4063. The closest of the dwellings is located approximately 30 
metres from Unicorn House and the proposed extension. There have been a number of 
objections to the application from residents raising concerns about the impact of the 
application on residential amenity including by reason of overbearing/over-dominating 
impact, loss of light, impact on visual amenity, noise, artificial light and air pollution.  
These objections have been carefully considered by officers. 

  
7.6 The application seeks the extension of Unicorn House to be used for B1c Use Class. The 

Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) defines a B1c Use 
as any industrial process, which can be carried out in any residential area without 
detriment to the amenity of that area by reason of noise, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, 
soot, ash, dust or grit.  

  
7.7 The application therefore seeks to extend the use of Unicorn House for a commercial 

operation, which by definition is in a Use Class which is appropriate within a residential 
area, and therefore the use would not give rise to a detrimental impact on residential 
amenity through impacts arising from light industrial activities.  

  
7.8 
 

The Environmental Health Officer has been consulted on the application and raises no 
objection in terms of noise/nuisance issues. 

  
7.9 Therefore by virtue of the Use Class which is being sought in the application it is 

considered that the application would not give rise to an unacceptable impact on 
residential amenity by reason of noise, vibration, smells or any other emissions arising 
from industrial processes. If, once operational, any complaints arise from operations in 
terms of emissions and the operator is not operating as B1c Use, then complaints would 
be dealt with under the provisions of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, Statutory 
Nuisance. 

  
7.10 In regard to the concerns about overlooking and over-dominating impact arising from the 

proposed extension to Unicorn House, as set out above the existing building and proposed 
extension is located approximately 30 metres from the dwellings located to the north of the 
B4063. Officers have visited the site and carefully considered any impact on amenity that 
would arise from the proposed application. There are a number of habitable room windows 
in single and two storey dwellings, as well as amenity space which would be in the line of 
site to an extent from windows within the proposed extension. However, Unicorn House is 
already situated on the site and there are already a number of windows which face 
northwards towards the dwellings which give rise to some potential overlooking. Whilst the 
extension to Unicorn House would create additional windows and some new aspects, it is 
not considered that the proposed extension would give rise to an unacceptable detrimental 
impact on residential amenity by reason of overlooking or overbearing impact, given the 
separation distance between the dwellings and the Unicorn House and due to the fact that 
B4063 is located between the buildings. 

  
 

78



7.11 The concerns about external lighting from objectors are noted. It is recommended that a 
condition is imposed on the planning permission requiring details of any external lighting 
on the building and within the proposed car park to be agreed by the planning authority 
prior to installation. 

  
7.12 Taking account all of the above, it is considered that the proposed development will cause 

no unacceptable harm to local amenity including the living conditions of neighbouring 
occupants and the proposal is acceptable in this regard. 

  
 Design, Visual Amenity and Landscape Impact 
  
7.13 The NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that developments function well 

and add to the overall quality of the area and are visually attractive as a result of good 
architecture. JCS Policy SD4 provides that new development should respond positively to, 
and respect the character of, the site and its surroundings, enhancing local distinctiveness, 
and addressing the urban structure and grain of the locality in terms of street pattern, 
layout, mass and form. It should be of a scale, type, density and materials appropriate to 
the site and its setting. 

  
7.14 Unicorn House is an attractive building in a prominent position on the B4063 which 

contributes to the character of the streetscene. It is considered by officers that the 
proposed extension is sensitive to the host building respecting the fenestration, scale and 
form. Whilst the building is designed to be functional to meet the needs of the operator, it is 
considered that the building would be visually attractive in this prominent position in the 
streetscene. A planning condition to control the fenestration details of the proposed 
extension is recommended to ensure the proposal assimilates successfully with the host 
building. 

  
7.15 In terms of the wider site, a number of trees were felled prior to the submission of the 

application and the car park is now proposed to be extended into the area which was 
formerly occupied by trees. The loss of these trees has had a detrimental impact on the 
streetscene. The application as submitted does propose the planting of new trees and a 
hedgerow to the front of the site and officers consider that this planting should be of high 
quality with semi-mature specimens to in order to ensure that the proposed car parking 
area does not dominate the streetscene in this prominent location. It is therefore 
recommended that a condition is imposed to secure a suitable landscaping scheme for the 
site. 

  
7.16 Overall subject to the imposition of conditions referred to above, it is considered that the 

design and visual impact of the proposal is acceptable. 
  
 Highway Safety 
  
7.17 Policy INF1 ‘Transport Network’ states that developers should provide safe and accessible 

connections to the transport network to enable travel choice for residents and commuters.  
The NPPF states that development should only be refused on highway grounds if there 
would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on 
the road network would be severe. 

  
7.18 The development would be accessed from the existing access onto the B4063 and 

proposes an additional 13 spaces on the site meaning that there would be a total of 37 
spaces on the site.   

  
 
 

79



7.19 The County Highways Authority have been consulted on the application and raise no 
objection subject to the imposition of conditions to secure the provision of secure cycle 
parking and that the works are carried out in accordance with a Construction Management 
Plan. 

  
7.20 On this basis, the proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of JCS Policy INF1 and 

the NPPF in respect of highways safety. 
  
8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 
  
8.1 The NPPF states that planning decisions should create the conditions in which businesses 

can invest, expand and adapt and significant weight should be placed on the need to 
support economic growth and productivity. The application site is located within a defined 
Major Employment Site and the Local Plan states that the Borough Council will support 
proposals for B1, B2 and B8 uses in this location. These factors weight firmly in favour of 
the proposal. 

  
8.2 Whilst the concerns of the Parish Council and local residents are noted, the proposal 

would result in an acceptable impact in terms of design, highway safety and residential 
amenity subject to the imposition of conditions. 

  
8.3 For these reasons it is recommended that planning permission is granted 
  
Conditions and reasons: 
  
1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of 
this consent. 
 
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
approved plans: 
 

- 21924 / 03A Site Plan and Block Plan as Proposed 
- 21924/04 Floor Plans and Elevations as Proposed 

 
3. Notwithstanding the submitted details no development shall take place above DPC level until 
samples (to include the proposed colour and finish) of the external materials of the  proposed 
extension have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and all 
materials used shall conform to the sample(s) so approved. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity 
 
4. No development shall take place above DPC level until details of existing and proposed ground 
levels and ground floor slab levels of the buildings hereby permitted, relative to Ordnance Datum 
Newlyn, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interest of visual and residential amenity 
 
 
 
 
 

80



5. Prior to installation of the windows, details of the new windows including materials and recesses 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the details so approved. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity 
 
6. The building hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until a landscaping scheme setting 
out precise details of the position, size, species and mix of new planting to screen the development 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Landscaping 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details no later than the first planting 
season following the completion of the development. The landscaping shall thereafter be 
maintained for a minimum period of 10 years. If during this time any trees, shrubs or other plants 
are removed, die, or are seriously diseased these shall be replaced during the next planting season 
with others of similar size and species unless the local planning authority gives written consent to 
any variation. If any plants fail more than once they shall continue to be replaced on an annual 
basis until the end of the 10 year maintenance period. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual and residential amenity 
 
7. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until drainage plans for the disposal of 
surface water flows have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the 
development is first brought into use 
 
Reason: This is to ensure that the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage 
as well as to reduce or exacerbate a flooding problem and to minimise the risk of pollution 
 
8. No external lighting shall be installed on the proposed extension or within the car park unless it is 
in accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  Such details shall include location, height, direction of light sources and 
intensity of illumination.  Any lighting which is so installed shall not thereafter be altered without the 
prior consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority other than for routine maintenance which 
does not change its details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity 
 
9. No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a construction 
management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to throughout the 
demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall provide for: 
• 24 hour emergency contact number; 
• Hours of operation; 
• Parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure satisfactory 
access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during construction); 
• Routes for construction traffic; 
• Locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant, waste and construction materials; 
• Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway; 
• Measures to protect vulnerable road users (cyclists and pedestrians) 
• Any necessary temporary traffic management measures; 
• Arrangements for turning vehicles; 
• Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles; 
• Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and neighbouring 
residents and businesses. 
 
 

81



Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the adopted highway in the lead into development both 
during the demolition and construction phase of the development. 
 
10. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until secure and covered cycle 
storage facilities have been made available in accordance with details to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To give priority to cycle movements by ensuring that adequate cycle parking is provided, 
to promote cycle use and to ensure that the appropriate opportunities for sustainable transport 
modes have been taken up in accordance with paragraph 108 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
 
Informative 
 
1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to 
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice, 
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website relevant 
information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to be 
kept informed as to how the case was proceeding. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82



83



84



85



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL – DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
 

Committee: Planning 
  
Date: 19 May 2020 
  
Site Location: Tretower, 28 Langley Road, Winchcombe, Cheltenham, 

Gloucestershire, GL54 5QP 
  
Application No: 20/00175/FUL 
  
Ward: Winchcombe 
  
Parish: Winchcombe 
  
Proposal: Erection of a first floor rear extension 
  
Report by: Emily Pugh 
  
Appendices: Site layout plan 

Elevations 
Floor plan 

  
Recommendation: Permit 

 
 

1.0 SITE DISCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL 

1.1. This application relates to Tretower, a semi-detached render finished dwelling located on the 
edge of the rural residential settlement of Winchcombe. The dwelling benefits from off-street 
parking to the front, and a generous elongated garden to the rear.  

1.2. The site is located within the Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty however is not 
affected by further constraints or designations.  

1.3. The current application seeks the erection of a first floor extension on top of an existing wrap 
around single storey flat roofed extension to the side/rear. The new extension would be 
significantly stepped back from the front elevation and would form a peripheral and 
subservient feature within the street scene, preventing any potentially harmful terracing 
effects. The extension would feature a hipped roof with decorative hipped dormers with a 
double window to the front, and single window and Juliette balcony to the rear. 

1.4. The extension is essentially built off the rear wall of the existing dwelling and would extend 
3.245m beyond the existing two storey rear wall. The eaves to the west side and the (north) 
rear elevations would be lower than those of the existing dwelling. 

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

 
 

Application 
Number 

Proposal Decision Decision 
Date    

86

Agenda Item 5b



77/00218/FUL Alterations and extension to existing dwelling house 
to provide a private car garage, wc, utility room and 
an enlarged kitchen and lounge. 

PER 21.06.1977  

15/01158/FUL Enlargement of existing single storey extension PER 15.12.2015  

 
 
 

3.0 RELEVANT POLICY 

3.1. The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this 
application: 

National guidance 

3.2. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance 
(NPPG) 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) - Adopted 11 
December 2017 

3.3. Policy SD4 (Design Requirements)  

3.4. Policy SD14 (Health and Environmental Quality) 

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 - March 2006 (TBLP) 

3.5. Policy HOU8 (Domestic Extensions) 

3.6. Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-Submission Version (July 2019) 

3.7. Policy RES10 (Alteration and Extension of Existing Dwellings) 

Neighbourhood Plan 

3.8. Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood Development Plan 2011- 2031 

3.9. Policy 5.1 (Design of New Development) 

3.10. Policy 5.5 (Extensions and Alterations to New Dwellings) 

3.11. Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life) 

3.12. The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property) 

4.0 CONSULTATIONS 

4.1 Winchcombe Town Council – Objection. ‘A further extension at 28 Langley Road was 
obtrusive, especially when viewed from the north and west, and an overdevelopment of the 
site.’ 

5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS 

5.1. The application has been publicised through the neighbour notification scheme and two 
letters of representation (from the same neighbour) have been received. Concerns include:  

- The principle sets a precedent 

- It would obscure sunlight to a bedroom window and decrease light to further windows 

87



- Current proposal is more obtrusive than previously withdrawn loft conversion scheme 

- The previously approved single storey flat roof extension sets a precedent 

- The approved and constructed single storey extension was built marginally on the 
adjacent property 

- Implications to property devaluation, mental health and council tax  

5.2 Councillor Mason has requested Committee determination to assess the overbearing 
impact on the neighbouring property and also loss of light to that property. 

6.0 POLICY CONTEXT 

6.1. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local 
Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as 
material to the application, and to any other material considerations. 

6.2. The Development Plan for this area currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) 
(2017), saved policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), 
and the Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood Development Plan.  

6.3. The Pre-Submission version of the Tewkesbury Borough Plan (PSTBP) was approved for 
publication and submission at the Council meeting held on 30 July 2019. On the basis of the 
stage of preparation the plan has reached, and the consistency of its policies with the NPPF, 
the emerging policies of the plan can be afforded limited to moderate weight, subject to the 
extent to which there are unresolved objections to each individual policy (the less significant 
the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given). 

6.4. The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report. 

7.0 ANALYSIS 

Design and Visual Amenity 

7.1. JCS Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out requirements for high quality design while 
Local Plan Policy HOU8 provides that development must respect the character, scale and 
proportion of the existing dwelling and the surrounding development. 

7.2. The Winchcombe and Sudeley Neighbourhood Development Plan (WaSNDP) Policy 5.1 sets 
out development should reflect the character of its surroundings, and should complement 
and enhance prevailing size, height, materials, layout and access of surrounding 
development. In this regard, Policy 5.5 sets out that extensions should be subservient to the 
host building, constructed in complementary materials and accord with the character of 
nearby buildings.  

7.3. The junction between the roof of the extension and that of the host dwelling is slightly clumsy 
however, given that it is set so far back from the front elevation and wouldn’t otherwise be 
readily visible from public vantage points, is considered to be acceptable.  

7.4. The fenestration is considered to be well balanced and in keeping with the original dwelling,  
and matching materials would ensure that the extension would have a positive cohesive 
relationship the host dwelling and be visually appropriate within the context of the 
streetscene. 

88



7.5. In view of the above, the proposal is considered to comply with the requirements set out in 
the relevant design Policies.  

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings 

7.6. Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local amenity 
including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. Local Plan Policy HOU8 provides that 
extensions to existing dwellings should not have an unacceptable impact on adjacent 
property and residential amenity. In this regard, Policy 5.1 of the WaSNDP states that the 
amenities of neighbouring residential occupiers should not be unduly affected by overlooking, 
loss of light, over-dominance or disturbance.  

7.7. Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the emerging Tewkesbury Borough Local 
Plan (Preferred Options Consultation) 2011-2031. 

7.8. The impact of the proposal upon neighbouring amenity has been carefully considered. In 
view of the orientation of the dwelling; there are two neighbours to be considered. The first is 
the attached semi (Lynwood) to the East, and the second is the adjacent neighbour (Winds 
Point) to the West.  

7.9. The proposed extension would be constructed on the Western boundary adjacent to Winds 
Point. It is noteworthy that Winds Point has similarly just been granted permission for a 
scheme to be constructed on the boundary and as such this is a material consideration. Two 
assessments must therefore be made; a) the impact that the proposal would have now (ie if 
the permitted proposal at Winds Point is not implemented) and b) the impact the proposal 
would have if the permitted proposal is implemented.  

7.10. Firstly, Winds Point currently has an elongated detached garage on its boundary which would 
obscure the currently proposed extension. The extension may result in some overshadowing 
to an outdoor patio area, however not to an unacceptable degree.  

7.11. Secondly, if the permitted proposal were to be implemented at Winds Point, the extension 
would have a lesser impact upon that patio area which would be intercepted by their 
permitted range of extensions. It is possible that the proposed two-storey extension would 
overshadow and restrict light to an en-suite roof light upon that range and as such this has 
been assessed. The roof light would still receive daylight and is likely proposed to serve the 
function of ventilation as opposed to a sole light source and as such whilst there would be an 
impact in terms of a reduction in light, this is not considered to be to an unacceptable level.  

7.12. The second neighbour to consider, is the attached semi; Lynwood. As set out above, the two 
storey extension would be constructed on the boundary of Winds Point and would span the 
Western half of the host dwelling. In view of this position, and distance between the 
properties, it is not considered that it would overshadow any of the neighbour’s windows to 
an unacceptable level. 

7.13. Further to the above, it is not considered that the extension would result in any overbearing 
impacts; in view of amenity gaps between properties.  

7.14. Whilst the applicant does seek a Juliette balcony to the rear, this would face towards the rear 
gardens and would not serve as a raised platform; fulfilling the same function as a window. 
This element; along with all other parts of the proposal are not considered to result in an 
unacceptable loss of privacy or overlooking. 

7.15. In view of the above, it is judged that the proposal would have an acceptable impact upon 
neighbouring amenity and is in accordance with Policies SD14, HOU8, 5.1 and 5.5.  

89



Impact upon the AONB 

7.16. Policy SD7 of the JCS sets out that developments are required to conserve and, where 
appropriate, enhance the landscape, scenic beauty, cultural heritage and other special 
qualities in an AONB.  

7.17. The dwelling is located within a residential estate comprised of dwellings varying in form and 
appearances. Within this context, it is not considered that the scheme would result in any 
harmful impact to the special qualities of the surrounding AONB, in accordance with Policy 
SD7.  

7.18. Other matters 

7.19. The objector makes reference to matters which are not material planning considerations and 
therefore cannot form part of the decision making process (ie; property devaluation, effects 
on mental health and council tax). 

7.20. It is noted that the applicant claims that a previous extension may have been built upon their 
boundary and whilst this in itself is a civil claim, the accusation has been relayed to the 
enforcement team who will establish whether or not the extension has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved plans. 

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

8.1. It is considered that the proposal would not be harmful to the appearance of the existing 
dwelling nor the surrounding area and it would not result in an unacceptable loss of 
residential amenity to neighbouring dwellings.  The proposal would also be of an acceptable 
size and design. The proposals would therefore accord with relevant policies as outlined 
above and it is recommended that the application be permitted. 

CONDITIONS: 
 
1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of 

this consent. 
 

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved documents: 
- Proposed elevations, floor plans and block plan: T.LR.W.PR.01B, received 24th February 2020 
; except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans. 

 
3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the proposed 

development shall match those used in the existing dwelling. 
 

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is in keeping with the existing dwelling. 
 
INFORMATIVES: 
 
1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to 

determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice, 
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website relevant 

90



information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to be 
kept informed as to how the case was proceeding. 

 
2.  This permission does not imply any rights of entry to any adjoining property nor does it imply      
that the development may extend into or project over or under any adjoining boundary. 
 
3. Your attention is drawn to the Party Wall Act 1996. The Act will apply where work is to be carried 
out on the following: 

- Work on an existing wall or structure shared with another property. 
- Building a free standing wall or a wall of a building up to or astride the boundary with a 
neighbouring property. 
- Excavating near a neighbouring building. 
 
The legal requirements of this Act lies with the building/ site owner, they must find out whether 
the works subject of this planning permission falls within the terms of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
There are no requirements or duty on the part of the local authority in such matters. Further 
information can be obtained from the DCLG publication Preventing and resolving disputes in 
relation to party walls - explanatory booklet. 
 

4. Your attention is drawn to the requirements of the Building Regulations, which must be obtained 
as a separate consent to this planning decision. You are advised to contact the Building Control 
Team on Buildingcontrol@cheltenham.gov.uk. 
 

 

91

mailto:Buildingcontrol@cheltenham.gov.uk


92



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL – DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
 

Committee: Planning 
  
Date: 19.05.2020 
  
Site Location: Land At The Bungalow, Down Hatherley Lane, Down Hatherley, 

Gloucester, GL2 9QA 
  
Application No: 20/00233/PIP 
  
Ward: Severn Vale South 
  
Parish: Down Hatherley 
  
Proposal: Erection of 1 No. infill dwelling. 
  
Report by: Mr Adam White 
  
Appendices: Site location plan 
  
Recommendation: Approve 
 

1.0 SITE DISCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL 

1.1. The application relates to land associated with a property known as ‘The Bungalow’, which is a 
residential property situated on the east side of Ash Lane. The Bungalow is primarily accessed 
via a private driveway off Down Hatherley Lane although there is a secondary gated access off 
Ash Lane, which forms part of the application site. That access also serves an electrical 
substation. 

1.2. The site is generally level and laid to grass and does not contain any buildings or structures. 
The eastern boundary is formed by post and rail fencing with southern boundary formed by 
post and wire fencing. The northern boundary is currently open. The site is not located within 
any recognised settlement boundary and is not subject to any site allocation. The site is not 
subject to any formal landscape designation but is located in an area of safeguarded land, 
which is reserved for longer-term development needs. 

1.3. The application is for permission in principle (PIP), which is defined in the NPPF as a form of 
planning consent, which establishes that a site is suitable for a specified amount of housing-led 
development in principle. Following a grant of permission in principle, the site must receive a 
grant of technical details before development can proceed.  

1.4. This current application is the first stage of the process and solely seeks to establish whether 
the site is suitable in principle for the erection of a single dwelling. The Government’s guidance 
sets out that the scope of the first stage of permission in principle is limited to location, land use 
and amount of development. The site layout, design, access, landscaping, drainage and any 
other relevant technical matters would be considered at the 'technical details' stage. 

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

There is no planning history that is considered to directly relevant to this proposal. 

3.0 RELEVANT POLICY 

93

Agenda Item 5c



3.1. The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this 
application: 

National guidance 

3.2. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance 
(NPPG) 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) - Adopted 11 
December 2017 

3.3. Policies: 

 SD4 (Design Requirements) 

 SD5 (Green Belt) 

 SD6 (Landscape) 

 SD9 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity) 

 SD10 (Residential Development) 

 SD14 (Health and Environmental Quality) 

 INF1 (Transport Network) 

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-Submission Version (July 2019) 

3.4. Policies: 

 RES3 (New housing outside settlement boundaries) 

 RES4 (New housing at other rural settlements) 

Down Hatherley, Norton and Twigworth Neighbourhood Development Plan 

3.5. Policies: 

 E2 (Landscape protection in open countryside) 

 E3 (Landscape and new developments) 

3.6. Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life) 

3.7. The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property) 

4.0 CONSULTATIONS 

4.1. Parish Council – Objects for the following reasons: 

 Safeguarded land development cannot be approved without the specific support of a JCS 
review. 

 The proposal does not represent infilling as the plot lies behind the linear street in a 
residential garden forming part of the open space which helps to promote the semi-rural 
nature of the local environment. The proposal is therefore inappropriate development in 
Green Belt terms. 

 The proposal conflicts with the Down Hatherley, Norton and Twigworth NDP in that it fails 
to protect the Green Belt and maintain the rural character of the settlements. 

 This proposal is not supported by any housing needs analysis for Down Hatherley. 

4.2. Highways Officer – No objections. 

5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS 

5.1. The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 14 days. 

94



5.2. 8 letters of objection have been received. The comments are summarised as follows: 

 The proposal does not represent infilling. 

 The proposed access is alongside the sewage pumping station for Ash Lane, which could 
be damaged by vehicles. 

 The proliferation of development expecting to use Ash Lane is not be coordinated or 
questioned by the Council. 

 The landowner’s home access is from Down Hatherley Lane and not Ash Lane.  

 Ash Lane is a private road and approval to access the proposed development from the 
road has not been sought or given. It should also not be implied. 

 The increase of traffic on Ash Lane would increase wear and tear on the road that is not 
constructed to public highway standards. It has not been built to take such a volume and 
lacks facilities such a street lighting and footpaths, so to allow unrestricted access directly 
impacts on the safety of residents. 

 There is no clarity as to how the property would contribute to the upkeep of Ash Lane which 
is privately maintained by it residents. 

 The application is invalid as Certificate B notification has not been served on the owners of 
Ash Lane. 

 The site should be accessed from Down Hatherley Lane. 

 The water/sewerage system in Ash Lane is regularly under pressure and can’t cope. 

 The proposal would not be in character with the configuration of other properties in Ash 
Lane where all have frontages onto the lane. 

5.3. 1 neutral letter has also been received, which states that the purported damage to Ash Lane 
from other recent building development has been exaggerated and is only a result of a property 
refusing to pay any repair contribution. Because of this, no repairs were ever made beyond 
Sandpipers. It goes on to set out that there is no formal weight restriction in place along Ash 
Lane and there is no coordinated maintenance in place. 

6.0 POLICY CONTEXT 

6.1. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local 
Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as 
material to the application, and to any other material considerations. 

6.2. The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), the saved 
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a number of 
'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans. 

6.3. A further material consideration is the Pre-Submission version of the Tewkesbury Borough 
Plan to 2031, which was approved for publication and submission at the Council meeting held 
on 30th July 2019. On the basis of the stage of preparation the plan has reached, and the 
consistency of its policies with the NPPF, the emerging policies of the plan can be afforded at 
limited to moderate weight, subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections to 
each individual policy (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight 
that may be given). 

6.4. Other material policy considerations include the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
and its associated Planning Practice Guidance.  

7.0 ANALYSIS 

95



Location 

7.1. Down Hatherley is not designated as a rural service centre or service village in the JCS. 
However, the settlement does contain a reasonable level of services and facilities given its size 
and function. Furthermore, given its proximity to the Innsworth and Twigworth strategic 
allocations, the level of available services and facilities will increase as those sites are 
developed. 

7.2. In terms of the principle of this development, the site does not represent previously developed 
land and is not allocated for development in the development plan. Criterion 4 (ii) of policy 
SD10 sets out that on sites that are neither allocated or previously-developed land, housing 
development will be permitted, except where otherwise restricted by policies within district 
plans, where it would represent infill within the existing built up areas of Tewkesbury Borough’s 
towns and villages. The JCS defines infill development as the development of an 
under-developed plot well related to existing built development. 

7.3. In this instance, the site is set back from the established build line of the properties that front 
onto Ash Lane and is essentially back-land development. However, given the nature of the 
site, any dwelling on the site would relate reasonably well to the existing properties along Ash 
Lane, including The Bungalow, which itself sits behind the established frontage properties. 
Whilst the proposed dwelling would be seen against a rural backdrop when viewed from Ash 
Lane, it would still be seen in the context of existing built form and would not appear divorced 
from the settlement. The proposal is therefore considered to represent infilling in the context of 
Policy SD10. 

7.4. It is also noted that there is currently an extant permission for 2 dwellings to the south west of 
the site fronting onto Ash Lane (15/00720/FUL). That permission expires on the 27th October 
2020. If those dwellings were constructed, the relationship between the application site and the 
existing dwelling in Ash Lane would be further improved. There is no guarantee that the 
permission would be implemented but in any event, the proposal is still considered to comply 
with Policy SD10 based on the current site context. 

7.5. Whilst not part of the development plan, policies RES3 and RES4 of the emerging Tewkesbury 
Borough Plan to 2031 are also material considerations. Policy RES3 supports very small scale 
development at rural settlements in accordance with Policy RES4. Policy RES4 follows and 
supports very small-scale residential development within and adjacent to the built up areas of 
other rural settlements providing:  
a) it is proportionate to the size and function of the settlement and maintains or enhances 

sustainable patters of development;  
b) it does not have an adverse cumulative impact on the settlement having regard to other 

developments permitted during the plan period; as a general rule no more than 5% 
growth or 10 dwellings, whichever is lesser, will be allowed;  

c) it complements the form of the settlement and is well related to existing buildings within 
the settlement;  

d) the site of the proposed development is not of significant amenity value or makes a 
significant contribution to the character and setting of the settlement in its undeveloped 
state;  

e) the proposal would not result in the coalescence of settlements;  
f) the site is not located in the Green Belt, unless the proposal would involve limited infilling 

in a village, limited affordable housing for local community needs (in accordance with 
Policy RES6) or any other exceptions explicitly stated within the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

7.6. For the reasons set out above, it is considered that the proposal would complement the form of 
the settlement and is reasonably well related to existing buildings. Furthermore, it is 

96



considered that the proposal would be proportionate to the size and function of the settlement 
and would not result in an adverse cumulative impact. The proposal would also not result in the 
coalescence of settlement. However, it is considered that the weight that can be afforded to 
this policy is currently limited due to the level of unresolved objections. 

7.7. The site is also located in an area of safeguarded land that has been removed from the Green 
Belt. Policy SD5 of the JCS states that safeguarded areas are not allocated for development at 
the present time. It follows that planning permission for the permanent development of 
safeguarded land (except for uses that would not be deemed inappropriate within the Green 
Belt) will only be granted if a future review of the JCS deems the release of this land necessary 
and appropriate and proposes the development. In this context, the Framework states that a 
local planning authority should regard the construction of new buildings as inappropriate in the 
Green Belt. One exception to this is where the development represents limited infilling in 
villages.  

7.8. Whilst the Parish Council are of the view that Ash Lane is more of a single street hamlet rather 
than a village, previous decisions in the immediate vicinity of the site have established that the 
settlement is considered to constitute a village in this context. In terms of ‘limited infilling’, the 
Framework does not define what this constitutes and therefore a judgement has to be formed 
based on the individual circumstances of the case. Whilst it is considered that the proposal 
represent infilling in the context of Policy SD10, it does not necessarily follow that it represent 
infilling in a Green Belt context. In this instance, whilst the proposal would be reasonably well 
related to existing built development it would still sit behind the established build line of the 
properties fronting onto Ash Lane. The application site is predominantly open to the north, 
south and east and there is no real sense of enclosure from existing built development. 
Moreover, the proposal would not fill in any form of existing gap. It is therefore considered that 
the proposal would also not represent limited infilling in a Green Belt context and therefore 
conflicts with Policy SD5 insofar as it relates to safeguarded areas. 

7.9. Whilst the proposal is contrary to Policy SD5 of the JCS, it is currently the case that the Council 
cannot demonstrate a 5-year supply of deliverable housing. In this situation, Policies SD5 and 
SD10 are both considered to be out-of-date, despite Officer’s view that the proposal is SD10 
compliant. Paragraph 11 of the Framework is therefore engaged and permission should be 
granted unless the application of policies in the Framework that protect areas or assets of 
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or any 
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when 
assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole. This is known as the ‘tilted 
balance’. 

7.10. Footnote 6 to paragraph 11 sets out the policies in the Framework that provide a clear reason 
for refusing the development proposed and includes land designated as Green Belt. However, 
as safeguarded land has been removed from the Green Belt, the tilted balance is still engaged. 

7.11. In response to the Parish Council’s concerns that the proposal is contrary to the Down 
Hatherley, Norton and Twigworth NDP, there are no direct policies that relate to the provision 
of new housing in the Down Hatherley Parish. The NDP explains that no new housing growth is 
planned in Down Hatherley Parish and therefore no settlement boundaries are defined. It goes 
on to states that given the poor sustainability and the Green Belt designation over the majority 
of the Parish, it is not necessary for the NDP to replicate the national and Development Plan 
policies that preclude new housing development in the area. Similarly, in respect of landscape 
protection, whilst Policy E2 lists a number of vistas and landscape features to be protected, the 
policy reverts to the strategic policies of the JCS in respect of the protection of the landscape, 
ecology and water environment. Consequently, whilst there is considered to be conflict with 
Policy SD5 of the JCS in respect of safeguarded land and a slight degree of landscape harm as 
noted further in this report, there is not considered to be any direct policy conflict with the NDP. 

97



Land-use 

7.12. The site forms part of the land associated with The Bungalow. The application site is described 
as garden land and is continuous with the substantial land that surrounds the property. Whilst 
the site may not represent the residential curtilage of The Bungalow, it has a well-kept 
appearance and has likely been used in association with the residential enjoyment of the 
property. It is therefore considered that a dwelling in this location would not be out of character. 
Furthermore, whilst the land to the east of the site has an open and semi-rural character, it is 
not subject to any formal landscape designation. There would be some harm to the landscape 
but given the context of the surrounding area, it is considered that the harm would be limited 
subject to achieving a suitable design and layout, which would be established at the technical 
details stage. Furthermore, the proposal would not impact on any of the vistas and landscape 
features noted in Policy E2 of the NDP. 

7.13. In terms of access, the application suggests that this would be taken directly off Ash Lane, 
which is a private road off Down Hatherley Lane. Following consultation with the Highways 
Authority, it is acknowledged that Ash Lane is a typical country lane with limited width and not 
suitable for large volumes of traffic. However, based on a single dwelling of a moderate size for 
a family, the number of associated trips would be minor and would not have an adverse impact 
on Ash Lane. In light of this, it is considered feasible that an acceptable access could be 
provided to the site from Ash Lane. The exact details would be assessed at the technical 
details stage. 

7.14. A number of residents have raised concerns regarding the private nature of Ash Lane and 
rights of access. However, this is considered to be a civil matter and outside the scope of this 
application. Concerns have also been raised that the application site does not extend to Down 
Hatherley Lane and the appropriate notices have not been served on all interested parties. In 
response to this, a revised site location plan has been submitted, which extends the red line of 
the application site to include Ash Lane up to where it meets with Down Hatherley Lane. Given 
the nature of the application, there is no requirement to serve notice on any interested parties 
at this stage. However, should permission be granted, there would be a requirement to serve 
the appropriate notices at the technical detail stage. 

7.15. With regard to other matters, there is no designated heritage assets in the vicinity and no 
overriding ecological constraints. The site is located in Flood Zone 1 and is therefore at a low 
risk of flooding. Drainage details can also be secured at the technical details stage. Concerns 
have been raised in respect of the potential impact on the water/sewerage system in Ash Lane. 
However, this is a matter that would be assessed at the technical design stage. 

Amount 

7.16. Subject to achieving a suitable design, it is considered that a single dwelling could be 
physically accommodated on the site in an acceptable manner, along with any associated 
outdoor amenity space and on-site parking provision. It is also considered that the scale of 
development is proportionate to the size and function of Down Hatherley. 

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

8.1. Whilst it is considered that the proposal represent infilling in the context of Policy SD10, it does 
not represent infilling in a Green Belt context. The proposal would therefore represent 
inappropriate development if the site was still within a Green Belt, contrary to Policy SD5 of the 
JCS. However, despite the proposal being considered to be Policy SD10 compliant, the 
Council cannot currently demonstrate a 5-year supply of deliverable housing sites and 
therefore technically the ‘tilted balance’ is engaged in accordance with paragraph 11(d) of the 
Framework.  

98



8.2. In terms of the conflict with Policy SD5, the proposal would be inappropriate development in a 
Green Belt context but the site is no longer within a Green Belt. As such, it is considered that 
the impact of the proposal on the safeguarded land should not necessarily be assessed in the 
context of the purposes of the Green Belt but whether it would prejudice the proper 
development of the safeguarded land when it is eventually released. 

8.3. Policy SD5 sets out that should any land be released in the safeguarded areas, development 
proposals would be assessed against the following criteria:  

 Development must be well-integrated and planned as part of any urban extension of 
strategic scale, directly and substantially physically linked to the urban area of Cheltenham 
or Gloucester; 

 Development must be well-related to public transport and other existing and planned 
infrastructure and where it makes a positive contribution to the setting of Cheltenham or 
Gloucester; 

 Development must not lead to a piecemeal, isolated or inefficient use of land in this area.   

8.4. In this case, given the scale of the development proposed, the proximity of the site to the 
existing properties in Ash Lane, and the intervening land to the east, which is in multiple 
ownership, it is difficult to see how the proposal would prejudice the purpose of the 
safeguarded land. Moreover, for the same reasons, it is considered that it would be difficult to 
sustain an objection on the grounds of prematurity given the Council’s current land supply 
shortfall. 

8.5. In light of the above, it is considered that there would not be any adverse impacts that would 
significant or demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the scheme, subject to securing 
appropriate details at the technical detail stage. The proposal is therefore recommended for 
Permit. 

CONDITIONS: 
 

Nil 
 
INFORMATIVES: 
 
1. A technical details application for the approval of matters must be made prior to commencement 

of development and no later than the expiration of three years from the date on this decision 
notice, after this period this planning permission in principle shall lapse. 
 

2. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to 
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice, 
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website relevant 
information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to be 
kept informed as to how the case was proceeding. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

99



© Crown Copyright 2020 OS 100047514

Omestead

Home

Carpe

Ash

Greenacre

The Chalet

Cambrai

The

Janetta

Rosedene

The
Torrs

Ashmead

Ellicott House

Diem

15.6m

White

House

Kariba

Ty Coch

Lynton

Delken

Chosen View

Grove

El Sub Sta

The Bungalow

Homeleigh

Watership Down

Mount View

Fortuna

Dutch

Grove

Hallbrooke House

Sand-Pipers

Silvermead

Lapswood

Romeley

Sunnyside

Charleston

Woodlawn

The Haven

The

Woodpeckers

Applegarth

Mayfield House

Barritz

Ashcroft

Vardo

The Ramblers

Reference

Created at findmaps.co.uk

2204117

1616

Order No:

Map Information

12/02/20

1:2500

Date:

Scale

20 10 20 m0

100


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5a 19/01225/FUL - The Traffic Group Limited, White Lion House, Gloucester Road
	1901225FUL - Plans

	5b 20/00175/FUL - Tretower, 28 Langley Road, Winchcombe
	Tretower Plan

	5c 20/00233/PIP - Land at the Bungalow, Down Hatherley Lane, Down Hatherley
	20.00233.PIP Land at the Bungalow Plan




